
Page 1 

 

AGENDA 
 
Meeting: Southern Wiltshire Area Board 

Place: Online (link below) 

Date: Thursday 28 January 2021 

Time: 7.00 pm 

 

 
Including the Parishes of: Alderbury, Britford, Clarendon Park, Coombe Bissett, 
Downton, Firsdown, Grimstead, Landford, Laverstock, Ford and Old Sarum, Odstock, 
Pitton and Farley, Redlynch, West Dean, Whiteparish, Winterslow. 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public 

in this online meeting. 
 

 
To join the meeting and enter in to discussion, 

Please use this link  
 

 
Guidance on how to access this meeting online is available here  

 

Alternatively, anyone who wishes to watch the meeting only, can do so here 

 
If you have any queries please contact Lisa Moore (Democratic Services Officer), 

direct line 01722 434560 or lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk and press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 

713114 / 713115 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
Cllr Richard Britton, Alderbury and Whiteparish (Chairman) 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Downton and Ebble Valley (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Christopher Devine, Winterslow 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Laverstock, Ford and Old Sarum 
Cllr Leo Randall, Redlynch and Landford 
 

 

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Guidance%20on%20Public%20Participation%20in%20Area%20Board%20Mee&ID=4585&RPID=23628092
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 
By joining the meeting you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of those 

images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 
 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
 

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here. 

 
 



Page 3 

 

Items to be considered Time 

1   Welcome and Introductions  7.00pm 

2   Apologies   

3   Minutes (Pages 1 - 24)  

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held online, on Thursday 1st October 2020. 

 

4   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee. 

 

5   Chairman's Announcements   

 To receive Chairman’s Announcements   

6   To note the written reports and updates in the agenda pack or 
distributed on the night (Pages 25 - 36) 

 

  Wiltshire Council Updates  
- Covid-19 update 
- Local Plan Review & Gypsy & Traveller Consultations 

 Landford Rural Needs Survey 

 Healthwatch Wiltshire 

 Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Current consultations 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/consultations.htm 

 

7   Matters of Community Wide Interest (Pages 37 - 48)  

 Community Policing – local issues and priorities 
In attendance: Inspector Pete Sparrow  
 
 

 

8   Census  7.20pm 

 Presentation about the Census 2021, its importance for Wiltshire 
and the key target groups.  
 
The Census day will be on March 21, with households across the 
country receiving letters with online codes allowing them to take part 
from early March. 
 
Presenter: Jonny Corbett – Census Engagement Manager 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 4 

 

 

9   PCC Precept proposals  7.35pm 

 Jerry Herbert, the Deputy Police & Crime Commissioner will present 
the Precept proposals for 2021/22. 
 
Information links: 
Public consultation survey (- 
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/PNHBKSG  
PCC Precept Video - https://youtu.be/eRMtE_YxdWk 
 

 

10   Area Board Work Plan  7.55pm 

 Report on progress towards our ambition to hand over as many 
detailed projects as possible to the new Area Board post the May 
elections. 
 
Reports from:  

 Parish council mini workshop  

 Health & Wellbeing workshop 
 

Ongoing work: 

 Community communications survey 

 Community eco projects directory 

 Health & Wellbeing work: 
Silver Sunday projects, Transfer of Laverstock Memory 
Group, The Make a Friend be a Friend project, Youth 
activities offer including fun days, Targeted ASB 
Interventions, partnership with the new Health & Wellbeing 
hub (Downton/Whiteparish surgeries) . 

 
Planned: 

 Youth themed online workshop 

 Rural Youth Targeted Intervention Programme (subject to 
approval under agenda item 12) 

 Partnership working with New Forest Park Authority on Youth 
Projects in and around Landford 

 ‘Get Out Get Active’ 

 Community area survey 

 Healthy Schools (subject to approval under agenda item 12) 
 
WE NEED HELP!! 

 

11   Community Area Transport Group (CATG) Update  
(Pages 49 - 64) 

8.15pm 

 To note the report from the last CATG meeting held on 2 December 
2020 and consider the recommendations as detailed in the 
summary attached. 

 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.surveymonkey.co.uk%2Fr%2FPNHBKSG&data=04%7C01%7CLisa.Moore%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C65f5da72bb4343a2f10f08d8b1776e2d%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637454473813366905%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=O%2BEg9qKnESccP2qZl3WN3h02VPuTZsYIpLRJtuSkJMI%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2FeRMtE_YxdWk&data=04%7C01%7CLisa.Moore%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C65f5da72bb4343a2f10f08d8b1776e2d%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637454473813366905%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Svrw9ZK8Sz7VoLToTdiXmZKqIcLhe3qiajKKM1QeeQs%3D&reserved=0


Page 5 

 

12   Community Area Grants (Pages 65 - 96) 8.20pm 

 Budget Amount Remaining £ 

Community Area Grant 
Scheme 

19,824 

Youth Grant Scheme 15,402 

Health & Wellbeing Grant 
Scheme 

7,700 (and 3.7k from 
2019/20) 

Community Area Transport 
Scheme  

7,798 

 
 
The Board will consider applications for funding as detailed in the 
reports attached to the agenda and listed below:  
 
Community Area Grants: 
 

Applicant 
Amount 
requested 

Applicant: Salisbury Older People's 
champion 
Project Title: Taking afternoon tea to isolated 
older people 
 
View full application 
  

£200.00  
(NB: application 

approved under 
delegated officer 

authority in December) 

Applicant: My Salisbury 
Project Title: Community Journalism and 
Media Training Project 
 
View full application 
  

£4479.97 

Applicant: Devenish Bradshaw Trust 
Project Title: City to Countryside Dog Trails - 
Digital and On-site  
 
View full application 
  

£940.00 

Applicant: ArtCare 
Project Title: ArtCare Well-being TV at 
Salisbury District Hospital 
 
View full application 
  

£2500.00 

Applicant: 1st Downton Scout Group 
Project Title: 1st Downton Scout Group 
Scout Hut Refurbishment 
 

£4500.00 

 

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3970
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3989
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3979
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3982


Page 6 

 

View full application 
  

Applicant: Alderbury Parish Council 
Project Title: Speed Indicator Device for 
Alderbury 
 
View full application 
  

£1000.00 

Late Application:  
 

 

Applicant: Downton Football Club 
Project Title: Clubhouse Community Project 
 
View full application 
  

£5000.00 

 
 
Youth Funding Bids: 
 

Application Grant Amount 

Applicant: My Salisbury (working title) 
Project Title: Project Spark Working Title 
 
View full application 
 

£4975.00 

Applicant: Area Board Project 
Project Title: Rural Youth Outreach Project 
 
View full application 
 

£5000.00 

Applicant: Area Board Project 
Project Title: Healthy Schools Initiative 
 

£5000.00 

 
 
Officer: Karen Linaker, Community Engagement Manager 

13   Close  9.00pm 

 The next meeting will be held online, at 7.00pm, on 11 March 2021.  

 

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3969
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3992
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=4097
http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_youth_grants/grant_detail.php?gid=874
http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_youth_grants/grant_detail.php?gid=887


Page 1 of 11 
 
 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
Meeting: Southern Wiltshire Area Board 

Place: Online 

Date:  1 October 2020 

Start Time: 7.00 pm 

Finish Time: 9.30 pm 

 

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:  

Lisa Moore (Democratic Services Officer),Tel: 01722 434560 or (e-mail) 
lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Wiltshire Councillors 
Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), Cllr Richard Clewer (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Ian McLennan and Cllr Leo Randall 
 
Wiltshire Council Officers 
Lisa Moore, Democratic Services Officer 
Karen Linaker, Community Engagement Manager 
 
 
Town and Parish Councillors 
Alderbury PC – E Hartford 
Downton PC – C Parry 
Laverstock PC – N Baker 
Winterslow PC – R Rogers 
Whiteparish – M Pennington 
 
Partners 
Wiltshire Police – Inspector Pete Sparrow 

 
 
Total in attendance: 19 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 11 
 
 

 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision 

32   Welcome and Introductions 

 The Chairman, Councillor Richard Britton, welcomed everyone to first online 
meeting of the Southern Wiltshire Area Board, which was being broadcast live to 
the internet. 

33   Apologies 

 There were none. 

34   Minutes 

 Decision 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2020, were agreed as 
a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman at a later date. 

35   Declarations of Interest 

 There were none. 

36   Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were none. 

37   To note the written reports and updates in the agenda pack 

 The Board noted the attached Wiltshire Council updates on Covid-19 and the  
Connect 5 online sessions. 
 
The Chairman drew attention to the Covid update and noted that The 
Community Engagement Manager, Karen Linaker would address this in more 
detail, later in the agenda. 

38   Matters of Community Wide Interest 

 Wiltshire Council update on Covid 19 response and recovery work to date 
 
16 voluntary community groups had been set up in the southern Wiltshire 
community area since the start of Covid. The local village response had been 
helping the overall council’s response, which was primarily through the Wiltshire 
Wellbeing hub, set up to aid access to goods, services and support where 
needed.  
 
Out of the 352 businesses eligible for a grant within southern Wiltshire 
community area, a total of 237 were successful in applying and were paid out.  
 

Page 2



Page 3 of 11 
 
 

Downton library would be in a final phase of those to reopen. It was hoped to be 
partially open by November.  
 
Work was ongoing on local outbreak management plans, led by Wiltshire’s 
Public Health team, which was also a key point of contact for any community 
groups that wish to set back up again.  
 
Email: Publichealth@wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Cllr Clewer noted that as the council’s deputy leader he had also been heavily 
involved with the response and associated activities. Central Government had 
stepped in to provide some financial support. He thanked Karen for all she had 
done in the process. 
 
The Chairman noted how impressed he was with the speed with which a new 
department had been created at Wiltshire council, to administer the government 
business loan scheme. 
 
On a more local point, there was a worry that many community groups which 
had wound down as a response to Covid, may not restart. He urged all Board 
members and the town and parish councils to encourage the local community 
groups wherever possible. 
 
Questions and comments included: 
 

 There was a big issue in obtaining prescriptions at the start are we now in 
more of a stable position with pharmacies delivering?  
Answer: Yes, it has improved, however there were some areas where it 
was still patchy with room for improvement. As part of the recovery 
structure the council had its health colleagues including pharmacy 
colleagues working to improve such issues.  
Cllr Clewer - There had been lessons learned. Procedures were now in 
place which would kick in very easily should they be needed.  

 

 I have worked with the Winterslow and Firsdown Covid response group 
and we have found on the whole the councils response to be very 
prompt. We have considered the national picture and are starting to gear 
back up again. Wonder if Wiltshire council may consider posting a 
reminder out that the support networks are there.  
 
 

Community Policing – local issues and priorities 
Inspector Pete Sparrow highlighted some of the things that have come in over 
the last 6 months was a new analytical tool which has helped us to look at 
statistics, to adapt and change the ways we are able to respond.  
 
Crime was at a low level for this time of year. We have developed a new model 
called the 4 E’s: Engaging, Explaining and Encouraging people to follow the 

Page 3

mailto:Publichealth@wiltshire.gov.uk


Page 4 of 11 
 
 

regulations produced by government and then when that has failed, to Enforce.  
 
Staff were doing their best to set an example, wearing a mask where suitable 
and socially distancing.  
 
Local priorities  
Speeding, Antisocial Behaviour in Downton, Rural Crime, Flytipping and Hare 
coursing this time of year. Please report anything you see that shouldn’t be there 
to us.  
 
In the Laverstock area there had been some issues with rogue trading.  
The country park at Castle Hill had experienced antisocial behaviour with quad 
bikes and motorbikes being ridden around.  
  
In Whiteparish there had been antisocial behaviour and additional patrols were 
being sought for the area. 
 
There had been a double intake of PCs across the county, with five coming to 
the Salisbury area Policing team.   
 
Questions: 

 How long before new officers become qualified for independent patrol?  
Answer: Within 10 weeks they should be independent, as the 10 weeks of 
tutorship gives them the confidence, then they were on probation for 2 
years.  

 

 Pleased to see that Wiltshire constabulary had not going overboard with 
fining people for breaches of the Covid restrictions on gatherings and 
were advising people without issuing instant fines.  
  

 
New Divisions for Southern Wiltshire Area Board  
 
An Area Board Boundary Review briefing paper was attached to the agenda. 
This detailed the consultation on the draft recommendations of the Electoral 
Review Committee, which would run from 10 September 2020 – 31 October 2020.  
 
 If agreed the new Area Board boundaries would take effect from May 2021. 
 
Cllr Clewer set out the process taken and the proposals for Southern Wiltshire Area 
Board, noting that in some parts of the county the process had been quite simple, 
however in this area it had been quite different.  
 
Divisional changes: 
 

 Redlynch and Landford - remained the same 

 Downton and Ebble Valley – remained the same  

 Alderbury and Whiteparish – Pitton, Farley, West Dean and clarendon park 

Page 4



Page 5 of 11 
 
 

added. 

 Laverstock - Bishopdown Farm and old settlement of Laverstock   

 Old Sarum and Lower Bourne Valley – Old Sarum, Longhedge, Ford, 
Winterbournes and Gomeldon. 

 Winterslow and Upper Bourne Valley – Winterslow, Firsdown and Parishes 
running up the Bourne Valley, from remainder of Idminston to Cholderton.  

 
 
This was what the Boundary commission had decided and we could not change it, 
which caused difficulty from an AB point of view. 
 
When we discussed it we felt it was not good to split a parish between 2 boards, so 
we strongly considered what to do with Laverstock and Old Sarum division and 
some areas in the Amesbury area.  
 
So we decided to recommend that those areas should remain together in one AB, 
and as the majority of it sits in Southern AB we felt it should remain there.  
 
We proposed Southern AB would comprises of 6 divisions, which would bring an 
extra Councillor in that AB. Somewhere in the process, Officers had changed the 
name from Southern Wiltshire Area Board to South Eastern Area Board. 
 
I am keen to know what the villages inside those three divisions felt about where 
they should sit? 
 
The Chairman urged people to respond to the consultation, to submit thoughts on 
the proposals. 
 
Questions and comments:  
 

 Chairman - The change to the title, I can see the argument, however we 
have lived for 11 years as Southern, we identify with being called Southern 
Wiltshire.   

 

 Cllr Randall - we have always been Southern, you should never change a 
name like that without good reason as it would confuse everyone for no 
good reason.  

 

 Cllr McLennan - thanks to Cllr Clewer for conducting the operation. I am also 
a part of that Committee. We were able to get to every area of Wiltshire in 
online meetings. The process was done in an entirely practical way, looking 
at the facts, history and changes to each area as a result of the boundary 
review. Laverstock & Ford always felt it belonged in Southern AB community 
area. It could have ended up in Southern, Salisbury or Amesbury.  

 

 Cllr Devine - Firsdown was cut out from Winterslow, you didn’t do a good job. 
Why not call it South East. I have still not had official notification what the 
new division will be that incorporates Winterslow. The only place I can see it 
is on the Boundary Commission website. Answer: You were invited along 
with every other member involved, who all attended meetings to discuss the 

Page 5



Page 6 of 11 
 
 

proposals. We are not able to get the updated boundary maps probably until 
December time.  

 

 Elaine Hartford – I am a creature of habit, it has been Southern Wiltshire AB 
since it first started. People will relate to that, not South Eastern, it would 
cause confusion. 

 

 Inspector Sparrow - I have overlapping AB boundaries with our policing 
boundaries. There may be scope to align the two. This could be taken 
forward to the Chief Constable for consideration.  

 

 Chairman - I am disappointed that we are not being asked to approve or 
discuss the proposed name change. Answer: This could be resolved quite 
easily.  
 

 
 

39   Now, where were we?! 

 Karen Linaker, Community Engagement Manager, gave an update on the work 
and projects of the Board prior to lockdown.  
 

 The “Make a friend, be a friend” project had been started and was still 
intended to go ahead. 

 

 Eco Friendly Villages project – work had begun and would be picked back 
up again with a volunteer in East Grimstead. 

 

 Community Safety Directory – Helped by Merv Quick, the directory had 
been completed and issued to parishes. 

 

 We investigated with Inspector Sparrow, a Smartwater project for some 
parishes, however that hit a stumbling block due to the problems created 
by parish councils seeming to be ‘trading’. 

 

 We also started work on mapping out which groups were already running 
for older people. 

 

 The Board had set aside £3700 to tackle older people’s isolation.  
 

 Continued supporting young people’s activities  
 
The Chairman noted that although there were a wide range of initiatives going 
forward, it was frustrating that they had been put on hold due to Covid, and it 
would be important to try and resurrect them. 
 
 

Page 6



Page 7 of 11 
 
 

40   Reviewing local priorities 

 The Chairman noted that when Covid struck, the Board had not received the 
JSNA data, which set out the statistics for the community area.  
 
Karen explained how the Board would facilitate discussion on the latest ‘joint 
strategic needs assessment’ for the Southern Wiltshire Community Area, and 
how people could get involved in helping to refresh and re-set the local priorities 
based on the data and in the light of issues that had been brought to bear by the 
pandemic. 
 
Covid 19 had highlighted areas for consideration: 
 

 Strong neighbourhood support for the vulnerable and more/new people 
stepping forward to lend a hand during the crisis - How to keep that going 
for the long term?  

 Greater dependence upon online communication, e.g. for home 
schooling/working, shopping, accessing GP appointments, parish council 
meetings, area board meetings, etc. - Was this community area’s 
broadband capacity fit for that purpose? How digitally inclusive are we? 

 A period where vehicle use was less, and more sustainable modes of 
transport prevailed - How can we take forward these benefits? 

 The impact upon our physical and mental wellbeing - Who amongst us 
need help? 

 The impact upon village and community groups and organisations - 
Which groups need help and support to re-start? 
 

New data was available to inform the local priorities: 
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/community-area/southern-wiltshire/   
 
A series of notable findings were presented by Karen under the headings of 
Health & Wellbeing, Environment, Housing, Transport & Highways, Children & 
Young People, Deprivation and Community Safety.  The slides from the 
presentation are attached to the minutes. 
 
The next steps: 
 

• Begin to shortlist priorities (based on discussions at the meeting, and a 
subsequent online survey) by the end of October 

• Organise a series of virtual mini events i.e. ‘working with our parish 
councils’; health and wellbeing, young people, housing, environment, 
between November 2020 and March 2021 to facilitate detailed discussion 
around these priorities 

• Prepare findings and proposals from these events for the new Area Board 
in May 2021, offering a clear rationale for which priorities should be taken 
forward, how and by whom. 

 
The Chairman explained that the objective was to formulate some proposals 

Page 7

https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/community-area/southern-wiltshire/


Page 8 of 11 
 
 

and project ideas to present to the new Area Board in May, to give them a 
running start. 
 
It was suggested and agreed that the presentation slides be circulated to parish 
councils prior to the mini events, to allow them to prepare points to feedback. 
 
A number of villages also had Facebook pages which could be another method 
of inclusion, circulating the data and asking for feedback.  
 
The board was asked whether it could request a map of the Wiltshire Council 
owned land which could be developed for affordable housing.  
 
Cllr Clewer noted that in terms of council housing, the council was looking at it 
with Stone Circle its housing company. There could be a number of reasons 
why rural sites could be unsuitable. 
 
The Chairman agreed to look into obtaining a land map for the area, which 
indicated the sites for considered by Stone Circle. 
 
Steve Bennett was in attendance from a croquet club, he asked that Karen 
include them in discussion around older people.   

41   Funding New Youth Activities in 2020/21 

 The Area Board noted the report and recommendations for funding as detailed 
in the papers attached to the agenda. 
 
It was noted that there was £15,402 remaining in the youth budget for the 
financial year. Winterslow youth club had been struggling over the summer, as 
had most volunteer youth clubs, due to the restrictions in place.  
 
The situation at Winterslow was that it was unlikely to survive.  
 
In previous years the Area Board had funded youth activities through a number 
of providers, including District Sports, Boom Satsuma, Anybody Can Cook, and 
last year it commissioned Bubble Football which was very popular.  
 
The Chairman asked whether it was felt that Winterslow YC may be helped by 
one off activities and if so whether the Board should approach them to offer 
some provision of that nature.  
 
Cllr Devine was in consultation with the YC in Winterslow and advised that he 
may be able to set up a repeat of a remuneration with the same lady that carried 
them through once before.  He asked that some funding be reserved for that 
possibility at a future date.  
 
Cllr McLennan noted that Old Sarum YC had been able to get going as they had 
had support from a paid youth worker Youth Action Wiltshire. He suggested that 

Page 8



Page 9 of 11 
 
 

this be looked at for others struggling to return.  
 
Action – KL to look at some professional assistance from Youth Action Wiltshire 
for the youth clubs across the area which were struggling to continue.  
 
 
Decision: 
 
That the Southern Wiltshire Area Board: 
 

 Authorised the Community Engagement Manager to finalise 
arrangements and costs for the provision of activities at Old Sarum 
Youth Club to a maximum of £1,200. 
 

 Investigate one off projects with existing youth clubs 
 
 

 Supported the idea of funds being used to facilitate a series of fun 
days for the remainder of the financial year, covid-19 arrangements 
permitting, subject to the details being agreed at the next meeting. 
 

 Explore potential new initiatives suggested at this meeting for how 
the remaining youth budget was used. 

42   Area Board Funding 

 The Board considered the funding requests as detailed in the report attached to 
the agenda and uploaded as supplement 1 to the agenda. 
 
It was noted that £3700 from the current budget had been ring fenced for older 
people isolation projects.   
 
Firsdown PC – Play area zip wire upgrade – requested £4000 
Applicant Mr Rogers was in attendance to present the application.  
 
Decision 
That Firsdown PC be awarded £4000 towards the Play area zip wire 
upgrade project. 
Reason 
The application met the Community Area Grant Criteria for 2020/21. 
 
Hamptworth Croquet Club -Keeping the club open – requested £5000 
Applicant Mr Bennett was in attendance to present the application. 
  
A crowd funding project, £1000 from Persimmons Homes and was backed by 
Sports England. This had brought in more than was needed for a safe storage 
facility which would house the equipment. The applicant confirmed that they had 
no concerns about being able to raise the balance through annual membership 

Page 9



Page 10 of 11 
 
 

fees. 
 
A suggestion to widen the net on target age of new members, to include a wider 
range and cater for all was put to the applicant. 
 
The Chairman noted that it was the Board’s usual preference to see support and 
if possible a financial contribution towards projects from the parish council. The 
applicant advised that he had contacted the PC to introduce himself, however he 
had not yet put in a request for funding.  
 
Decision 
Hamptworth Croquet Club was awarded £5000 towards the purchase of 
machinery to maintain the lawns with a suggestion that the Club look to 
expand the range of ages of its membership by targeting younger 
members to join. 
Reason 
The application met the Community Area Grant Criteria for 2020/21 
 
Winterslow PC – Barry’s Field Officials Facility – requested £2500 
The Board was asked to ratify an urgent decision taken in August 2020 under 
the delegated authority of the Community Engagement Manager.  
 
Decision  
The Area Board ratified the award of £2500 to Winterslow PC for the 
Barry’s Field Officials Facility project, which had been made in August 
2020 under CEM Delegated Powers. 
 
 
The application from Phoenix Stars had been withdrawn due to the purchase 
already having been made and the restrictions on retrospective funding.  

43   Community Area Transport Group (CATG) Update 

  
The Board considered a scheme from Redlynch PC to repair street name 
plates, which had not been discussed at CATG due to missing the deadline.  
 
Decision  
The Redlynch PC Street name plate project was allocated £600. 
 
The Board also considered the recommendations of the CATG as set out in the 
report attached to the agenda.  
 
Cllr Randall declared a non-pecuniary interest in the Solar Panel application as 
he was on the Whiteparish PC.  
 
Decision 
The Southern Wiltshire Area Board approved the CATG recommendations 

Page 10



Page 11 of 11 
 
 

as set out in the report and listed below: 
 

 Signing & Lining – Grimstead Butterfurlong Road/Long Drove £637 

 New street nameplates – Grimstead £750 

 Footway Improvements design works – Longhedge A345 junction 
with Mynarski Close £2800 

 Solar Panel & Post for a SID – Whiteparish, Romsey Road/Green 
Close £439 

 

44   Future dates & Close 

 The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday 28 January 2021 at 7.00pm 

Presentation Slides 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



24/11/20

1

Welcome to 
Southern Wiltshire 

Area Board

Online meeting – 1 October 2020

Chairman, Cllr Richard Britton

Apologies
Minutes of the last meeting
Declarations of Interest

1

2

Page 13

Page 13



24/11/20

2

Chairman’s Announcements 

Written reports & online updates

3

4

Page 14

Page 14



24/11/20

3

Matters of Community Wide Interest

a) Wiltshire Council – Covid-19 update 

b) Community Policing 

c) Area Board Boundary Review

Area Board Boundary Review
Draft Recommendation of the Electoral 

Review Committee
South East Wiltshire Area Board

5

6

Page 15

Page 15



24/11/20

4

Background to the Review
Area Board composition
Electoral Review of Wiltshire 
Council

Process of the Review
Electoral Review Committee
Consultation

Existing Area Board Divisions

7

8

Page 16

Page 16



24/11/20

5

Proposed Area Board

A consultation will run from 10 
September 2020 – 31 October 2020

Responses can be sent to CGR@wiltshire.gov.uk. Or 
Democratic Services, County Hall, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN

9

10

Page 17

Page 17



24/11/20

6

Now – where were we?!
• Published a new community safety directory

• Planning for the launch of “Make A Friend Be A Friend” in Downton and surrounding villages

• Began work to produce an eco-friendly projects / initiatives / places directory 

• Investigated with Inspector Pete Sparrow a SmartWater pilot

• Exploring community project options to assist with anti social behaviour issues in Downton

• Started to map out where and what groups are running for older people

• Set aside a fund to tackle older people’s isolation

• Ongoing support for young people, including allocation of funds for positive activities

• Ongoing focus on transport schemes via the Community Area Transport Group

Reflecting on all that has happened since…building back better

• Covid 19 

– Strong neighbourhood support for the vulnerable and more/new people stepping forward to lend a 
hand during the crisis.  How to keep that going for the long term? 

– Greater dependence upon online communication, e.g. for home schooling/working, shopping, 
accessing GP appointments, parish council meetings, area board meetings, etc. Is this community 
area’s broadband capacity fit for that purpose? How digitally inclusive are we?

– A period where vehicle use was less, and more sustainable modes of transport prevailed.  How can 
we take forward these benefits?

– The impact upon our physical and mental wellbeing. Who amongst us need help?

– The impact upon village and community groups and organisations. Which groups need help and 
support to re-start?

• New data published by Wiltshire Council to inform our local priorities

– https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/community-area/southern-wiltshire/

11

12

Page 18

Page 18



24/11/20

7

Notable findings for Southern Wiltshire from new data

Health & Wellbeing 
• High hospital admissions 
• High prevalence of dementia
• Low %age of people ‘at risk’ 

having flu jab
• 85yrs+ population is high, but 

very few care homes
• Only 6% of the population is a 

library member
• Low numbers attending Council 

leisure centres

Environment**
• Low number of LED street lights
• Very high fly tipping rate**
• 50% of housing has good energy 

efficiency rating

Housing
• £370,000 average house price
• Household under-occupancy in 

65yrs+
• Lowest number of planned new 

builds in 2006-2026 strategy
• higher than average number of 

households affected by the 
benefits cap 

Transport & Highways 
• High resurfacing spend in 

2019/20 but low number of 
potholes filled**

Children & Young People
• High levels of obesity in 10-11yr 

olds
• Only 27% of schools in our area 

are engaged in the Healthy 
Schools Programme

Deprivation
• Low levels in the main, with some 

exceptions
• 9% living in fuel poverty

Community Safety**
• Low levels of crime

** denotes high priority ranked in Oct 2019 survey

Reviewing local priorities
From before…

• A focus on community safety

• Tackling litter and fly-tipping

• Footpath and rights of way 
maintenance and activities

• Dementia Friendly Communities

• Facilitating positive activities for 
young people

• Protecting the environment and 
promoting eco-friendly living

From the new data….

• Helping more people access 
affordable housing and retirement 
housing

• Helping those living in fuel poverty

• Encouraging more schools to sign 
up to the Healthy Schools 
Programme

• Tackling obesity in 10-11yr olds

• Looking at our more disadvantaged 
neighbourhoods

Building back better: post-covid-19

• Support for village groups to get back 
up and running

• Furthering opportunities for dialogue 
and local action with existing and new 
volunteers around community 
priorities 

• Vulnerable residents health and 
wellbeing (a focus on underlying 
health conditions: heart disease, 
obesity, diabetes, copd…)

• Ensuring broadband capacity is fit for 
purpose; and facilitating digital 
inclusion initiatives

• Encourage more sustainable modes 
of transport

13

14

Page 19

Page 19



24/11/20

8

Next steps…. 

• Begin to shortlist priorities from slide 4 (based on discussions at this meeting, 
and a subsequent online survey) by the end of October

• Organise a series of virtual mini events i.e. ‘working with our parish councils’; 
health and wellbeing, young people, housing, environment, between November 
2020 and March 2021 to facilitate detailed discussion around these priorities

• Prepare findings and proposals from these events for the new Area Board in 
May 2021, offering a clear rationale for which priorities should be taken 
forward, how and by who.

Funding Youth Activities 2020/21

15

16

Page 20

Page 20



24/11/20

9

Area Board Funding

• Firsdown PC – Play area zip wire - £4000
• Hampworth Croquet Club – Keeping the club going - £5000
• Winterslow PC – Barrys Field, Officials Facility - £2500
• Phoenix Start – Air Purification System - £850 

CATG

17

18

Page 21

Page 21



24/11/20

10

Meeting concluded

Thank you for joining the meeting- if you have any feedback about 
the quality of the broadcast, please contact

committee@wiltshire.gov.uk

Please note that the meeting has paused and will 
resume shortly. 

19

20

Page 22

Page 22



24/11/20

11

We are currently working to resolve technical 
difficulties, please stay on this page until the meeting 
resumes. 

If the meeting cannot be resumed please contact 
Democratic Services via committee@wiltshire.gov.uk
for further advice. 

Technical difficulties

21

Page 23

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Wiltshire Council Information Item 

 

 

 

Subject: 
 
COVID-19 update 
 

 
The infection rate in Wiltshire is continuing to rise, in line with the national trend, 
which is of concern.  It is so very important that everyone across our population, no 
matter what age, is sticking to the regulations, staying at home wherever possible 
and protecting their families, friends and communities. 
 
The new variant is much more transmissible and that is demonstrated by the large 
increase of cases. It is crucial that everyone adheres to the latest rules and advice, 
which means:  
 

 socially distancing if you have to leave your house,  

 not meeting up with anyone that’s not in your household or in a childcare or 
support bubble unless it is one other person for your daily exercise,  

 keep washing hands regularly, 

 wearing a face covering when required, 

 booking a test as soon as you develop any COVID-19 symptoms,  

 and self-isolating where required  
 
A big part of helping to contain the spread of the virus is an effective test and trace 
system. If the NHS are unable to contact a positive case as part of the test and trace 
service, they will pass the details onto the  local public health team. If you receive a 
call from 0300 456 0100 then please pick up, as that will likely be the team looking to 
reach you. Please save that number in your phone under ‘test and trace’ as it’s vital 
you don’t miss any calls.  
 
The Wiltshire Wellbeing Hub remains in place for those people who may need 
additional support, particularly people identified as clinically extremely vulnerable.  
You can contact the Wellbeing Hub by telephone or email: 

• Tel number: 0300 0034576 
• Email: wellbeinghub@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 
The hub is open Monday to Friday from 9am to 5pm and on Saturday between 
10am-4pm.   
 
Wiltshire Council has a series of schemes to support businesses during the 
Coronavirus restrictions. For further information and advice please visit : 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/business-advice-support-covid19-grants or email: covid-
19businesssupport@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
For all the latest updates on Wiltshire Council services and support please visit: 
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/public-health-coronavirus 
 
Vaccinations programmes are underway and the request from the NHS is to not 
contact the NHS to ask for the vaccine as they will contact you . If you are offered a 
vaccine appointment, please do attend. 
 
For the latest GOV.UK updates and advice on the new national lockdown please 
visit: www.gov.uk/guidance/national-lockdown-stay-at-home#high-alert 
  
 
  

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

mailto:wellbeinghub@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/business-advice-support-covid19-grants
mailto:covid-19businesssupport@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:covid-19businesssupport@wiltshire.gov.uk
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/public-health-coronavirus
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-lockdown-stay-at-home#high-alert




Wiltshire Council Information Item 

 

 

 

Subject: 

 

Wiltshire Local Plan review consultation 
 

Web 
contact: 

 

https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/news/sign-up-to-online-events-and-have-your-say-
about-where-future-developments-should-take-place-in-wiltshire  
 

 

 
Consultations on both the Wiltshire Local Plan review and the scope and 
content of the proposed Gypsies and Travellers Development Plan Document 
will begin on Wednesday 13 January and run until Tuesday 9 March 2021.  
 
Information on both consultations, including how to comment will be available 
for the start of the consultation period via the links on the council’s planning 
policy webpages:  
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planning-policy- local-plan-review-consultation and 
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/planning-gypsy-travellers.   
 
Comments can be submitted in the following ways: 
 

 Online via the above links; 

 By email to: spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk; and  

 Post to: Spatial Planning, Economic Development and Planning, 
Wiltshire Council, County Hall, Trowbridge, BA14 8JQ.   

 
Should people wish to speak to a planning policy officer about the 
consultations they can call the council on 0300 456 0100. 
 
Consultation to inform the Wiltshire Local Plan review  
Wiltshire Council has to allocate sufficient land to satisfy housing and 
employment needs up to 2036 in its Local Plan. As such it is seeking the 
views of local communities and stakeholders to see if the suggested 
distribution of numbers across the county is correct, as well as which of the 
proposed sites are most suitable at the county’s principal settlements and 
market towns.  
 
The consultation also invites comments on a planning framework for rural 
areas to support neighbourhood planning and to address local housing needs, 
and provides the opportunity to comment on how the council’s planning 
policies can be shaped to address climate change.  
Feedback during this review consultation will help to shape the draft Local 
Plan, which will then be produced, and people will be given another 
opportunity to take part in a further consultation in late 2021. 
 
As COVID restrictions mean that face-to-face events will not be possible 
during this consultation, the council is holding a series of online events for 
people to find out more about what the Local Plan consultation involves and 
how to comment.  
 

Page 27

https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/news/sign-up-to-online-events-and-have-your-say-about-where-future-developments-should-take-place-in-wiltshire
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/news/sign-up-to-online-events-and-have-your-say-about-where-future-developments-should-take-place-in-wiltshire
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planning-policy-%20local-plan-review-consultation
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/planning-gypsy-travellers
mailto:spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk


Wiltshire Council Information Item 

 

 

Each event relates to a particular settlement, and there are also two events for 
rural areas, which include all other Wiltshire villages and settlements that are 
not covered in the other 15 events. 
 
 
Gypsies and Travellers Plan 
Comments are sought on the proposed scope and content of the Gypsies and 
Travellers plan. In line with Government planning policy and legislation, the 
plan will look to allocate land for travellers in sustainable locations to meet 
their permanent and temporary accommodation needs up until 2036. 
 
This consultation will help to shape a draft plan, which the council will then 
prepare and consult on autumn 2021. 
 
Online Events 
 
The online events, which will be held from 7pm-8pm on the dates shown are 
as follows:  
 

 Planning for Calne, Monday 18 January 

 Planning for Corsham, Tuesday 19 January 

 Planning for Royal Wootton Bassett, Tuesday 19 January 

 Planning for Chippenham, Wednesday 20 January 

 Planning for Tidworth and Ludgershall, Wednesday 20 January 

 Planning for Malmesbury, Thursday 21 January 

 Planning for Amesbury, Thursday 21 January 

 Planning for Marlborough, Monday 25 January 

 Planning for Bradford on Avon, Monday 25 January 

 Planning for Westbury, Tuesday 26 January 

 Planning for Salisbury, Tuesday 26 January 

 Planning for Devizes, Wednesday 27 January 

 Planning for Trowbridge, Wednesday 27 January 

 Planning for Melksham, Thursday 28 January 

 Planning for Warminster, Thursday 28 January 

 Planning for rural areas, Monday 1 February and Tuesday 2 February 
 
People can sign up for the events in advance via this link, or by contacting the 
council via email (spatailplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk), or phone (0300 
456 0100).  
 

Page 28

https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planning-policy-local-plan-review


 

 

 

Subject: Landford Rural Housing Needs Survey 

Web 
contact: 

housing.strategy@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Landford Rural Housing Needs Survey 
 
Opens: 4th January 2021 
Closes: 8th February 2021 
 

Landford Parish Council are asking all residents and those with a connection 

to the parish, to complete the housing needs questionnaire. 

 

The information will be used: to identify local affordable housing needs; to 

appreciate local residents’ current housing situation and to find out what 

aspirations people have. 

 

For residents living in the parish a questionnaire will be delivered to their 

home or alternatively the survey is available online. 

 

We would really like to encourage residents to complete the survey online and 

this can be found at http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/housing-local-housing-

needs under the title ‘Current Housing Needs Surveys’.  

 

Those people who do not live, but have a connection to the parish and would 

like to complete a questionnaire can also complete the survey online or 

contact the parish council for more information: 
 
Landford Parish Council  
 
Clerk to Landford Parish Council: Melanie Camilleri  
 
Email: clerk@landford.org.uk  
 

Page 29

mailto:housing.strategy@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/housing-local-housing-needs
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/housing-local-housing-needs




Healthwatch Wiltshire has appointed four new 
Board members to help prioritise the
health and social care issues that are most 
important to the people of Wiltshire.

The Local Leadership Board is the driving force 
behind our commitment to ensure the voices 
of children, young people and adults are heard 
by those who run, plan and regulate health 
and social care services in the county.

The new Board members join existing members 
Hazel Dunnett, Andy Mintram, Irene Kohler, 
Joanna Wittels and Emma Leatherbarrow.

Gillian Leake joins us as the new Chair of 
our Local Leadership Board. She has worked 
in and around health and social care for 40 
years, and will be bringing her knowledge and 
experience from roles in social work and senior 
management to Healthwatch.

Alan Mitchell is our new Vice Chair. Formerly 
a civil servant, Alan is now a coach and change 
management consultant and volunteers for a 

number of local and national charities.

Margaret Winskill taught food and nutrition 
and health and social care before becoming 
a Public Health specialist, leading the Young 
People Friendly programme and the Health 
Trainer service in Wiltshire. She is now a 
diabetes prevention coach and an active 
member of a refugee community sponsorship 
group.

Vijay Manro has held long careers both as a 
civil engineer and a local magistrate and now, 
as a Healthwatch Wiltshire Board member, 
is looking forward to interacting with local 
people on health and care issues.

Acting Healthwatch Wiltshire Manager Julie 
Brown said: “We’re thrilled to welcome our 
new Board members. They bring with  
them an amazing wealth of knowledge, 
experience and expertise and we’re looking 
forward to developing a new work plan that 
focuses on what matters most to the people of 
Wiltshire.”

Area Board Update
January 2021

01225 434218 			  info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 	 www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

Healthwatch Wiltshire welcomes 
four new Board members

Healthwatch Wiltshire is looking for feedback 
from people who have used health, care 
and community services during the Covid-19 
pandemic.

Since March, NHS and social care services have 
had to change the way they work to meet 
coronavirus safety guidelines, while voluntary 
and community groups have stepped up their 
support to help local people through the 
pandemic.

We want to understand how these changes 

have been working for you, what’s been good 
and what could be better.

Gillian Leake said: “As the new Chair of 
Healthwatch Wiltshire, I’m looking forward to 
hearing people’s stories and helping to ensure 
their voices are heard by those who plan and 
run services. Please take five minutes to have 
your say about how these services are working 
for you during the pandemic.” 

Fill in our survey online or call us to complete 
over the phone or request a paper copy. 

Share your experiences of services during Covid-19

Page 31





1 
 

 
 

Update for Wiltshire Area Boards 
 
January 2021 
 
 
Coronavirus vaccination 
December saw the start of the roll out of the coronavirus vaccination in Wiltshire by 
our Primary Care Networks. Initially, local vaccination centres were set up in Devizes 
and Chippenham, with sites in Westbury, Ramsbury, and Melksham vaccinating in 
the following weeks. 
 
Following government guidance on priorities our first focus is on vaccinations for 
older residents in care homes, all those over 80 years of age and health and social 
care workers. 
 
 
Approval to become an Integrated Care System – BSW Partnership 
In December health and care organisations in Bath and North East Somerset, 
Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) were confirmed by NHS England and Improvement as 
meeting the criteria to become an Integrated Care System. 
 
An Integrated Care System (ICS) is a way of working across health and care 
organisations that allows them to work closer together to take collective responsibility 
for managing resources, delivering care and improving the health and wellbeing of 
the population they serve.  
 
The ICSs will integrate: 

 primary and specialist care 

 physical and mental health services 

 health and social care. 
 
Across BSW, hospitals, GP surgeries, community care providers, local authorities, a 
mental health trust, an ambulance trust and voluntary sector organisations have 
been working together since 2016 as part of the BSW Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP). 
 
Working together as the new BSW Partnership, health and care partners will 
prioritise issues that matter to local communities as well as managing health and 
care provision during the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

Page 33



2 
 

The BSW Partnership is also responsible for setting the strategy and goals for 
improving health and care in the area and overseeing the quality and safety, decision 
making, governance and financial management of health and care services. 
It will also provide clinical and professional leadership for the whole area. 
 
For more information, visit www.bswstp.nhs.uk.  
 
 
Devizes Integrated Care Centre -update 
The Full Business Case for the Devizes Integrated Care Centre will be discussed at 
the BSW CCG Governing Body meeting on 21 January 2021. 
 
Construction is scheduled to begin in 2021 with the new building opening in 2022. 
 
 
Trowbridge Integrated Care Centre - update 
The Full Business Case for the Trowbridge Integrated Care Centre will be discussed 
at the BSW CCG Governing Body meeting on 21 January 2021. 
 
Construction is expected to  start towards the end of 2021 with the new building 
opening in 2023.  
 
 
Medequip retained as provider of community equipment and continence 
services in Wiltshire 
Following a tender process, Medquip has been awarded a new five year contract 
with Wiltshire Council and the CCG to manage Community Equipment and 
Continence Services for Wiltshire, continuing a 15 year working relationship in the 
region. 
 
Medequip is planning significant innovations and service enhancements to further 
improve community equipment services provision for the people of Wiltshire. The 
operational site will remain at Calne and will be totally redesigned and extended, 
implementing a new layout to facilitate increased capacity, throughput and efficiency. 
 
 
Care in the community - Home First and a new rapid response service 
We have seen a significant increase in referrals to the Home First programme over 
2020. Home First is an established joint health and social care pathway delivered by 
Wiltshire Health and Care and the Local Authority. The service aims to speed up the 
discharge process from hospital, increasing the number of people who need no 
additional ongoing care and supporting them to regain their independence.   
 
We have agreed to fund an expansion in the Wiltshire Home First capacity to support 
the increase in referrals and to increase the community capacity for winter. 
Recruitment is now underway to employ more support workers and therapists.   
 
In addition to the Home First expansion, we are also going to fund a rapid response 
service across Wiltshire. The service will provide short-term, responsive and reactive 
interventions for people whose health suddenly deteriorates at home, making sure 

Page 34

https://www.bswstp.nhs.uk/


3 
 

they are safe and getting the support they need at home or in community settings to 
prevent further escalation or hospital admission.  
 
In addition it can respond to a patient who has attended A&E or been seen by an 
ambulance crew to prevent emergency admission to hospital by providing care in the 
community setting. Patients should receive services within two hours in a crisis and a 
two-day referral for reablement care.  
 
The service will be implemented in a phased approach initially boosting response 
capability within existing community services. The impact of Phase 1 will be 
reviewed by June 2020 in order to inform future phases of development. 
 
 
New model for mental health services being developed 
We are finalising a new model for mental health services to deliver at pace 
revolutionary change to the community provision of support for people over 18 years 
of age across emotional wellbeing and mental illness.  
 
The proposed new model has been co-created across the system, involving people 
with lived experience, third sector providers and the local authority, and will be based 
on a Primary Care Network geographical footprint. A total of £10.3million is available 
for BSW across three years to support delivery which will include investment in the 
third sector, primary care, community and secondary mental health provision.  
 
We are currently awaiting approval of our plans and will update you further in coming 
months. 
 

Page 35





 

1 
 

Key Updates   
The most significant update since my last report must focus on COVID-19.  Lockdown 2 has led into 

Lockdown 3 as we witness cases, hospital admissions and deaths sadly rising rapidly.  No longer are 

we looking for evidence of the existence of this pandemic as many of us will now have either seen 

the effects personally or with friends and family.  The tragic sudden death of a 36 year of fit male 

isolating in Salisbury with his brother must serve as a reminder of the dangers of this virus and the 

need to take this seriously.   

This Lockdown has a key message for everyone to ‘treat it as though you have it’ as the Policing tone 

changes from Engage, Explain and Encourage towards Enforcement.  As I write this, I see reports of 

parking chaos within our rural community.  The direction is to Stay Local.  The preference is to walk 

from your home.  This is not always possible, but if you must drive to a local area, common sense 

must apply where several others have already parked there.  Many locations have closed their car 

parks.  That does not mean that you should then park in front of gates – farmers must still have 

access to their land with their large vehicles. 

Not wearing face masks, unnecessary travel or allowing people into your home; it all amounts to 

additional demand on your Police Service who would prefer to be proactively fighting crime in the 

more traditional sense. My plea to you is to put effort into following the guidance and not into ways 

to flex the guidance.  What you consider to be acceptable as an excuse to break or bend the rules 

causes anxiety to others and now is the time to be united.  Please Stay Home wherever possible. 

Salisbury CPT Structure 

 

The new Salisbury CPT Beat Areas have now been established building better joined up 

working between the Neighbourhood and Response Teams.  Each Response Team has 

been aligned to a Beat Area to encourage ownership and better Problem-Solving with 

anticipated increased community visibility and engagement encouraged.    

Neighbourhood Team

Beat Areas

Response Sergeants

Neighbourhood Sergeants

Inspector Pete Sparrow

Tracey Holloway & 

Lisa Lovatt

Keith Jackson 
(Team 1)

Al Cromwell 
(Team 2)

CENTRAL
City Centre, The 

Friary & 
Southampton 

Road

PC Jack 
Billington, PC 
Mark Douglas

PCSO Stephanie 
Whitcombe, 

PCSO Marie Kitt

Josh 
Bliss

(Team 3)

WEST
Bemerton 
Heath, St 
Paul's & 

Churchfields

PC Matt 
Holland

PCSO Val 
Brown 

PCSO Jo 
Atkinson

Steve Jolly

(Team 4)

EAST
Castle Road, 
Bishopdown, 

Alderbury, 
Laverstock & Old 

Sarum

PC Rachel Gunn

PCSO Jenny Moss, 
PCSO John Taylor 
& PCSO Imogen 

Trevis 

Rachel Winter 
(Team 5)

South
Harnham, Wilton 
(Town & Rural) 

Downton & Redlynch

PC James Barrett

PCSO Matt Smith, 
PCSO Simon Ward & 
PCSO Matt Murray

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

2 
 

Changes in personnel: 

Sgt Lisa Lovatt returns to her Neighbourhood Role with Sgt Steve Jolly returning to leading 

Team 4 Response.  Sgt Rachel Winter has joined Salisbury CPT from the Staff Office to the 

Assistant Chief Constable. 

4 new Student Constables have arrived and are being tutored on Response Teams (PCs 

Jennie Howells, Hannah Cranham, James Howells & Ben Taylor) with 3 new PCSO (Marie 

Kitt, Imogen Trevis and Stephanie Whitcombe) joining our Neighbourhood Team.  We also 

see PCSO Simon Nash, LCI Lucy Thompson and Escort Officer Will Hammond leave to start 

their training as Student Constables – we hope to see them again later this year! 

With the uplift in PCSO numbers and following a review of demand, I have increased the 

PCSO numbers in both East and South areas, which we anticipate will help improve some 

of the visibility issues, particularly whilst we are managing our response to the Pandemic. 

Exception Reporting (Crime Trends) 
This is an opportunity to understand crime trends over a 2-year period.  This reporting 

method helps to assess crime trends based on seasonal trends and can assist identifying 

emerging trends.  The central blue line is the 2-year average with the green lines 

representing the Upper and Lower Control Limits.  For the statistically minded the 

One/Three/Eight markers are where we have consecutive data points that are above or 

below 1 standard deviation from the mean.  

Wiltshire Police: 

This chart is provided as a base line to provide context to the performance of Salisbury CPT.  

It is worth comment on the impact Lockdown 1 & 2 have had upon crime figures.  Also of 

note is that there are seasonal trends where crime is generally highest during the Summer 

and the Christmas/New Year period.  The wider impact of Covid on these charts will have 

seen that central blue line average lower making the darker blue crime line appear higher.  

I hope this openness will provide some clarity over perception. 

 

Page 38



 

3 
 

Salisbury CPT:  

There are clear comparators between the first 2 charts (Salisbury and Wiltshire), 

particularly the impact of the Covid Lockdown.  The two aspects I will highlight is that 

Salisbury was the pilot area for Problem Solving during the Summer of 2019 which 

correlates to the seasonal flattening of demand in the Salisbury area.  Although the 

demands of Crime reporting may have declined during 2020 during the Lockdown periods, 

our staff remained busy responding to new and changing Covid legislation and guidance.  In 

addition, and continuing to use our performance tools, we continue to promote a Problem-

Solving approach to focus on harm, threat and risk to reduce demand.  This may account 

for the improved performance during Lockdown 2 where Salisbury recorded a lower 

amount of crime than during Lockdown 1. 

 

Acquisitive crime (Burglary, Robbery and Theft Offences) has seen a marked decrease in 

reporting (burglary in the East and South areas explored later).  Closure of shops and more 

people at home has certainly impacted, but also the proactive efforts of officers to disrupt 

know criminals operating in our area, based on intelligence, has seen positive results. 

 

Violent Crime reports have also been impacted by Covid.  We focus on Safeguarding the 

Vulnerable, particularly repeat Domestic Abuse victims and there have been reminders that 

you should not stay home during Lockdown if it is not safe to do so.  December saw a sharp 

rise in of Domestic Abuse reports (below), which is mirrored elsewhere and will explored 

further to understand any lost opportunities. 

Page 39



 

4 
 

 

Central (City Centre, The Friary and Southampton Road): 

 

There has been significant focus over the last 6 months on the demand created around 

Culver Street Car Park, Paynes Hill and Barnard Street resulting in a partnership problem-

solving approach being adopted.  This reviewed local policies, patrol strategies and best 

practice from other areas.  Funding was secured from Salisbury City Council and the Police 

Crime Commissioner to move 2 CCTV cameras to key locations, which has assisted in 

identifying offenders and radio links to CCTV see faster response to ongoing concerns.  The 

below heat maps quickly identified the location of demand.  The first map demonstrates 

calls to the Police for the 3-month period of April-July 2020, whereas the second October to 

January 2021.  The demand reduced significantly to acceptable levels following this work 

and the demand is now better spread across the City.  We will continue to focus our efforts 

on hot-spots and hope that this again demonstrates the systems available to support 

officers.  Much of this work goes unseen or unreported but benefits communities. 

     

Page 40



 

5 
 

West (Bemerton Heath, St Pauls & Churchfields):  

 

The All Crime 2 year high during the Summer focused on Domestic Abuse cases following 

Lockdown 1.  Since then there has been a fall in offences.  There are no ‘Exceptions’ to crime 

reporting, although violent crime continues to be monitored (now back below average).  We 

note that there is an increase in the area of trafficking of drugs.  This might alarm some, but 

I believe it is a positive aspect of proactive rather than reactive policing.  It also highlights 

how small numbers can influence such charts.  Although we can’t speak of many of these 

cases under investigation, I can say that they are often based on community intelligence and 

wish to encourage the public to continue to report suspicious activity to help direct future 

efforts. 

 

East (Alderbury, Laverstock, Castle Road & Bishopdown): 

 

Page 41



 

6 
 

The East area continues to see the fall in crime trend.  There are no statistical exceptions but 

do note there has been lots of debate on social media regarding a recent increase in 

burglaries.  Looking at this as a 2-year profile there has been a short-term rise to being 

above average and above seasonal expectations.  This is being investigated by our 

Neighbourhood Team with the support of CID and has been a factor in moving a PCSO to 

this area.  We have increased our rural patrols and we continue sharing intelligence with 

Hampshire and Dorset Police as note that this increase is also seen in the South area. 

 

South: 

 

This is a very large area which crosses over 3 Area Boards and although we staff the area as 

a whole, it is helpful to break it down further.  The consistent theme remains that we 

remain below average crime in all areas, but there are no statistical exceptions identified. 

 

Page 42



 

7 
 

Wilton (above), Harnham (below) and Downton (2 below) remain low crime areas with 

below average reports and no identified areas or patterns to focus on.  It is worth 

remembering that that smaller the sample the more distorted the image can become. 

 

 

Although there are no ‘exceptions’ the Downton area, (which includes Redlynch and parts of 

the New Forest) it has seen a recent rise in burglaries.  This is a factor in moving a PCSO 

across from the City Centre to the South Area and will help increase visibility.  We are 

working closely with our colleagues in Hampshire and Dorset with our investigation of these 

offences, which also appear in the East area. This has become a priority and we have 

increased our patrols of the area to help deter offending. 

 

 

Page 43



 

8 
 

Priorities – Some of what are we doing to keep you safe? 
 

AREA    PRIORITY    UPDATE    

All Areas COVID 19 Patrols 

Engage, Explain, Encourage & Enforce the regulations. 

On one visit 5 people were located at the rear of a property trying 

to avoid the Police.  All were issued notices and sent home to 

addresses in Salisbury and Southampton. 

Police will respond when possible to reports of breaches of the 

regulations and have allocated staff to this role each day to 

proactively patrol populated areas based on intelligence to 

encourage social distancing, the wearing of masks and to 

discourage unnecessary travel away from the home. 

Central    

    

     

Barnard Street / Paynes    
Hill / Culver Street Car    
Park     

A Problem-Solving approach with key stakeholder participation has 

assisted in the reduction of reports to this area. The Closure Order 

obtained on a private premise in Barnard Street has been effective 

and has assisted in the reduction of the reports.    
A similar Partnership Problem Solving approach identified ways to 

improve Culver Street Car Park in order to address Anti-Social 

Behaviour (noise from skateboarders and car enthusiasts) as well as 

rough sleeping and drug use.  Sadly, the necessary funding for this 

project came from the People Friendly Streets fund that has now 

been reallocated. 

Demand Reduction 

In a similar approach to the issues around Barnard Street, 

Neighbourhood Officers with Wiltshire Council are now focusing on 

working with John Baker House in identifying ways we can work 

better together to reduce demand from the location.  This is the 

often-unseen work that can have the greatest impact. 

In addition to locations we are looking at who is creating the most 

demand as individuals and looking to find ways that we can prevent 

or reduce the need for repeat visits.  This is considered in a holistic 

approach and not just from an enforcement angle. 

Street Drinkers and the 

Maltings  

Ongoing effort to work with the City Security Officers in addressing 

the street drinking issues. A Partnership approach is reviewing how 

we are recording and tackling ASB with the Street Drinking issues a 

focal point of the discussions.  Many of these issues are not 

specifically Police matters, but the resulting behaviour can be and 

so it is important that we all work together to improve this problem. 

Youth ASB    

This was an issue in the during the Summer; however, the arrest of 

two particular individuals and strict bail conditions has resulted in a 

significant reduction on our demand.  This priority will be closed 

Page 44



 

9 
 

West     

    

Demand reduction for 

shoplifting   

An increase in reports of theft offences and ASB related matters in 

the area of Wilton Road. Officers are patrolling the area to reduce 

the demand and deal with offences.  These patrols include regular 

visits to the garages and shops. 

ASB - Lower Road, Lower 

Bemerton and around St 

John’s Primary School    

Report of 4 males in a car seen to be exchanging money resulted in 

4 males and a quantity of cannabis located.  One has been 

cautioned and another summonsed to court. 

Catapult offences around 

Westwood Road    Regular patrols to deter further offences.  We would welcome some 

intelligence to help progress this matter. 

Drugs Intelligence gathering and patrols in order to address the issues 

around drug supply and use.  This also includes opportunities to 

engage and safeguard vulnerable youths susceptible to being drawn 

into County Lines issues.  

East 

  

Vulnerability Patrols Officers conduct regular visits to our identified vulnerable people in 

an effort to both reassure them following reported concerns and also 

to deter visits by criminals who wish to exploit them.  One such 

address resulted in quickly identifying members of an Organised 

Crime Group who were stopped for burglary and fraud offences and 

they are now on remand awaiting trial. 

ASB   Concerns over noise ASB in the Car Park under Aldi resulted in 3 

adults receiving fixed penalty notices for Covid-19 offences with one 

of them also reported for careless driving after being seen burning 

doughnuts in their car. 

  

Burglary Focus on patrols in both marked and unmarked cars in both the East 

and South area. 

2x 14-year-old youths were arrested for burglary of Leehurst Swan 

School after responding to reports of noise on the roof and the CCTV 

cameras being moved.  A search located one youth and the second 

was detained at their home address. 

 South    

    

     

ASB and Safeguarding in 

Downton    
Wiltshire Council, Youth Offending Team and the Neighbourhood 
Policing Team continue to focus their collective efforts on the 
safeguarding issues identified by the community.  Having used 
Community Protection Warnings, Community Protection Notices and 
Closure Orders the team have now taken the step to gain a civil 
injunction on an adult female, identified as the root cause of the 
concerns.  This order prevents her from: 
(i) Engaging in, threatening to engage in or inciting or allowing others 
to engage in conduct causing or capable of causing a nuisance or 
annoyance to any person located within the areas of Roman Meadow 
and Moot Lane, Downton, Salisbury. 

Page 45



 

10 
 

(ii) Engaging in, threatening to engage in or allowing others to engage 
in conduct causing or capable of causing alarm, harassment or 
distress to any person located with the areas of Roman Meadow and 
Moot Lane, Downton, Salisbury.  
(iii) Using, threatening to use or inciting others to use violent 
behaviour towards any person located within the areas of Roman 
Meadow and Moot Lane, Downton, Salisbury. 
(iv) Allow drug use in or around Roman Meadow and Moot Lane, 
Downton, Salisbury. 
(v) Associating with any persons under the age of 18 years of age, 
save for those family members identified in the injunction. 
(vi) Contacting either by herself or by encouraging others to do so an 
individual stated in the injunction. 
The court issued a power of arrest to this injunction, meaning that if 
she is found to have breached clause (iii) she can be arrested. 
The injunction is valid until August 26, 2022. 
 
Please continue to report concerns as we are keen to progress this 
priority with appropriate intervention where required.  

Speeding Vehicles    Community Speed Watch (CSW) have sadly been suspended during 

the Lockdown period. Staff are being encouraged to conduct speed 

checks where possible, some of which are highlighted on Social 

Media.    

Rural Crime inc. Hare    
Coursing, Fly-Tipping &    
Theft offences    

Visibility in the rural areas is vital. Fly-tipping is a concern and we 

have conducted joint operations with Wiltshire Council and Trading 

Standards surrounding waste carriage licenses.  

Burglary Series   We have an Organised Crime Group living within this area and across 

Hampshire and Dorset.  Staff are disrupting their activity whenever 

possible.   

Highlights around Salisbury 
Double Murder 

Marcin Zdun, aged 40, was found guilty at Winchester Crown Court of murdering his 40-

year-old wife Aneta Zdun and their 18-year-old daughter Nikoleta at their home in Wessex 

Road, Salisbury on Monday 1 June 2020.  This was a traumatic case for everyone involved, 

but I wish to pay tribute to the members of the public who witnessed and bravely reacted to 

the events before them and to the initial officers who attended.  Their professionalism was 

surpassed by their acts of humanity and compassion in those final moments.  I know they 

took great comfort from the fact that there was nothing more they could have done to alter 

the outcome.  Zdun was sentenced to Life Imprisonment with a minimum term of 34 years; 

Page 46



 

11 
 

a sentence that I hope provides closure to the family, friends and close community of this 

terrible crime. 

Officer Bitten 

Mark Archibald, 38, of Salisbury was found guilty of wounding with intent, common assault 

and assaulting an emergency worker and sentenced to 4 years imprisonment at Bristol 

Crown Court.  The main offence related to biting a young police officer on his arm leaving a 

wound so severe that required surgery and left permanent scaring.  The officer remained 

professional despite the horrific injury he had just received and remained focused on 

detaining and calming Archibald on the ground in the middle of Elizabeth Gardens without 

drawing attention from the families using the park during the Summer.  Sadly, this was the 

officer’s last shift for Wiltshire Police as he resigned during his recovery. 

Catapults 

Mark Day, 33, of Moot Close, Downton, appeared at Gloucester Crown Court and was 

sentenced to six years and six months imprisonment and fined £170 having pleaded guilty to 

the following: 

- Aggravated taking a vehicle without consent 

- Attempted GBH Section 18 on a police officer 

- ABH on a police officer 

This sentence also took into account a previous assault on 2 Police Officers whilst wearing a 

knuckle duster and the assault on Police Dog Elvis. 

The incident started with a stolen vehicle from Downton and a pursuit that took in parts of 

Dorset and the New Forest and was recorded by the Police Helicopter.  The driving took in 

speeds in excess of 100mph, a collision with a pony in the New Forest and a foot chase by 

officers and Police Dog Elvis, where Day fired large metal nuts and stones at close range 

hitting both officers and dog.  One projectile left an officer with a cut to his head, narrowly 

missing his eye. 

The impact of these offences are not just physical and impact on their family and colleagues 

too.  I believe there should be a change in the law restricting the carrying of catapults 

without a clear lawful purpose.  I see far too much crime relates to them. 

Bus Burglars 

David Clift, 44, from Salisbury and his nephew Josh Clift, 26, from Longhedge, have been 
sentenced to 2 years and 6 month (David Clift) and 16 months suspended (Josh Clift)for a 
burglary at Griffin School in Salisbury in September where they stole a safe and the school 
mini buses. 
 
 

Page 47



 

12 
 

Dog Thefts 

Nationally, Dog thefts have been much commented on during the last year as their value 

has increased.  Responding to correspondence and social media it is important to 

differentiate between perception and reality with this highly emotive crime.  We are Not in 

the middle of a ‘dog theft epidemic’ in Wiltshire.  That is not to say that this offence does 

not happen or to undermine the impact of such a crime.   

From 23rd December 2019 to 23rd December 2020, Wiltshire Police received just 26 reports 

that relate to thefts, attempted thefts, and suspicious activity that could be perceived to be 

a pre-cursor to an attempted theft, of dogs by unknown suspects.  Of these 26 reports, 8 of 

them involved a dog physically being taken, and none of these incidents have any obvious 

linked patterns to them in terms of suspects, behaviours, breeds of dogs, or locations.  9 of 

these 26 reports (all suspicious activity) came as a result of a social media release that we 

made regarding suspicious activity. 

What is important is to remain alert and report incident when they happen.  This helps us 

with sharing information to address all sorts of criminal activity. 

Poachers 

Patrols by Amebury CPT on Salisbury Plain tried to stop a Jeep Cherokee, which failed to 

stop driving off across country with no lights.  Salisbury officers located the vehicle entering 

Salisbury on the A338 and deployed a ‘Stinger’ tyre deflator device to stop the car safely. 

Five people were arrested for failing to stop for Police, poaching and no insurance with the 

dogs, equipment and car seized.  Wiltshire is a rural county and we will take every 

opportunity to pursue people who come here to commit offences. 

 

I apologies for a very lengthy report, but I hope I provide you with detail and a flavour of a small 

percentage of what your Community Policing Team are doing on a daily basis to keep you safe. 

 

Insp Pete Sparrow 

Salisbury Community Policing Team 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 Item Update Actions  Who 

1. Attendees and apologies 

 

Present: 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Apologies: 

Cllr Richard Britton (Chair), Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Leo Randall,  Colin Berry, Richard Parsons Odstock & Nunton 
Parish Council, Trudi Deane Laverstock & Ford Parish Council, Richard Sheppard, Winterslow Parish Council, 
Maria Pennington Whiteparish Parish Council, Chris Hall Downton Parish Council, Vic Bussereau. 
 
Graham Axtell – Area Highways Engineer Julie Watts, Principal Engineer 
 
 
Grimstead Parish Council, Cllr Ian McLennan 

2. Financial Position 

  
The financial statement can be found in Appendix A.  £14,789 is uncommitted. 
 

 CATG 

3. 
 
Top 5 Priority Schemes 
 

a) 13-19-1 
 
Odstock & Nunton PC. 
Footway improvement. 
 

A preliminary design has been prepared and preliminarily approved by Odstock & Nunton 
PC, some minor design changes are required to accommodate the material requirements 
of the farmer. 
 

 JW 

b) 13-20-4 
 
Grimstead 
Butterfurlong Road/Long 
Drove  - Signing and Lining 
 

The group agreed to fund the scheme at a cost of £637 from the CATG and £213 from 
the PC. 
 
The works order for the signing element has been sent to the contractors for 
programming, the lining element will be progressed when sufficient works are available to 
progress an order. 
 

 
 

JW 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 11

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0469714,-1.69628,84m/data=!3m1!1e3?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0469714,-1.69628,84m/data=!3m1!1e3?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

c) 

13-20-6 
 
Grimstead PC 
Various locations - Street 
nameplates 

The group agreed to fund the scheme for five street nameplates at a cost of £750 from 
the CATG and £250 from the PC. 
 
The works order is due to be sent to the contractor by the end of week commencing 
30/11/2020. 
 

 
 

JW 

e) 

13-20-10 
 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
A345 junction with Mynarski 
Close  
Footway Improvement 
 

The group agreed to progress the design work at a cost of £2800 - no PC contribution. 
 
The topographical survey has been ordered and the trial holes is currently scheduled for 
week commencing 7 December 2020. 
 

 JW 

f) 

13-20-11 & 13-20-12 
 
Whiteparish PC 
Romsey Road/Green Close 
Solar Panel and Post for 
SID 

The group agreed to fund the scheme to install a post & solar panel at a cost of £439 from 
the CATG and £146 from the PC. 
 
The work has been ordered and is awaiting programming by the contractors. 

 JW 

P
age 50

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Mynarski+Cl,+Salisbury+SP4+6BP/@51.1056156,-1.7947773,142m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x4873e935dbd9fab9:0x2fdb958d1462f662!8m2!3d51.1052746!4d-1.7950284?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Mynarski+Cl,+Salisbury+SP4+6BP/@51.1056156,-1.7947773,142m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x4873e935dbd9fab9:0x2fdb958d1462f662!8m2!3d51.1052746!4d-1.7950284?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0095068,-1.6327435,3a,75y,333.95h,85.82t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1stX5L4R_zdpzJW406uNWycQ!2e0!6s%2F%2Fgeo2.ggpht.com%2Fcbk%3Fpanoid%3DtX5L4R_zdpzJW406uNWycQ%26output%3Dthumbnail%26cb_client%3Dmaps_sv.tactile.gps%26thumb%3D2%26w%3D203%26h%3D100%26yaw%3D83.18652%26pitch%3D0%26thumbfov%3D100!7i13312!8i6656?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

5. New Issues 
a) 13-19-4 

 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
 
Green Lane junction Roman 
Road. 
 
Signing improvements 

At the last meeting the group agreed to fund the scheme to erect signs 
on Roman Road at a cost of £750 to the CATG and £250 from the PC 
and to delay making a decision on the give way signage until the next 
meeting when confirmation of costs was available.   
 
L&FPC have provided evidence of two incidents at the junction of Green 
Lane and Roman Road.   
 

• 1 Jul 2019 - a 11 year old overshot the junction on his cycle traveling 
south on Green Lane down the slope. He came off his cycle when trying 
to avoid a car. An Ambulance was called and he was taken to A&E - 
luckily he suffered no serious injury. This info was provided by an eye 
witness to the event.  

 
• 5 May 2020 - a teenage on foot was hit by a car when crossing Roman 

Road at this junction and was taken to A&E by his mother. No serious 
injury luckily but he suffered cuts  and bruises plus skin burns. This info 
was provided by his mother.  

   
The cost of providing a give way sign and a give way ahead sign is £400.  
This assumes no vegetation clearance is required and that permission is 
granted from the land owners to erect the sign; none of the verge in Green 
Lane is recorded as adopted highway.  
 
The group took vote on whether or not to erect the give way signage on 
Green Lane 4-3 against therefore the decision was taken not to proceed 
with the signing. 
 
 

The group recommends that 
the give way signage on 
Green Lane is not 
progressed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 

P
age 51

https://wiltshire.highway-iams.uk/Live/HIAMS/WebFloManOrder/?RP=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre&HM=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre
https://wiltshire.highway-iams.uk/Live/HIAMS/WebFloManOrder/?RP=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre&HM=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

b) 13-20-3 
 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
 
Mynarski Close 
 
Various 

The entrances to Mynarski Close and adjacent cottages onto the A345 
are hidden, particularly at night. The speed limit on the A345 is 40mph 
but poorly signed and vehicles travel at 60mph.  A lack of speed 
monitoring has led to drivers that feel it is safe to speed without risk of 
prosecution. Accidents have occurred at the junction. 
 
Priority 1 - improve the speed limit signing, larger signs or carriageway 
roundels.  
Priority 2 - a sign warning of the hidden entrances supported by a light 
covering the junction. There is no street lighting on Mynarski Close (10 
houses) so no ambient light.  
 
Finally, irregular speed control/checks by the police to deter speeding. 
 
L&FPC noted this problem when responding to the original planning 
application. The PC accepts there is a safety issue and supports the 
request for WC to investigate the problem and implement appropriate 
measures to improve the situation. A Traffic Survey Request Form has 
been raised in parallel to this to confirm traffic speed at the entrance to 
the Close.  
 
The group agreed to defer discussion about this issue until the results of 
the traffic survey are available. 
 
The results from the traffic survey can be found in Appendix B; however 
the equipment was placed in the wrong location and have since been 
repeated, the results are still being processed. 
 
 
 
   
 

The matter was deferred until 
the next meeting. 

CATG 

P
age 52

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Mynarski+Cl,+Salisbury+SP4+6BP/@51.1056156,-1.7947773,142m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x4873e935dbd9fab9:0x2fdb958d1462f662!8m2!3d51.1052746!4d-1.7950284?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

d) 13-20-5 
 
Winterslow PC 
 
Weston Lane  
 
Speed limit review 

Weston Lane is subject to National Speed Limit, it is a busy road and 
people drive to the limit and beyond. There has been a significant 
increase in the occupancy of this road with several new dwellings.  There 
is a Sports Pavilion used by school age children transported to and from 
the facility, sometimes on foot.  
 
This has been discussed at several Parish Council meetings whereby 
residents have attended to complain about the speeding traffic along this 
road. It is a concern that traffic is legally allowed to drive up to a limit of 
60mph in the middle of a village 
 
The Parish Council would like to request a speed limit reduction along 
this road, from the National speed limit of 60mph to an appropriate speed 
limit, for the area, of 30mph. 
 
It is unlikely that any review would recommend a blanket reduction to 
30mph, but it may recommend a 40mph speed restriction.  A speed limit 
assessment would cost £2500 and implementing any recommended 
changes would be additional. 
 

The group recommends that 
the speed limit assessment is 
progressd at a cost of £2500 
subject to a 25% contribution 
from Winterslow Parish 
Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 

e) 13-20-15  
 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
Clarendon Park PC 
 
Milford Mill Road – Volume 
of traffic use (in particular 
vehicles over 7.5t) 
 

Both Laverstock & Ford PC and Clarendon Park PC have raised several 
concerns regarding the amount & speed of traffic using Milford Mill Road, 
concerns about the number of large vehicles contravening the existing 
7.5t weight limit and the frequent damage being caused to Milford Bridge. 
 
Following a widely published site meeting which included John Glen MP 
and Parvis Khansari (director for Highways & Waste) representatives 
from the organisations involved met on 23 November to discuss possible 
solutions.  Attendees and actions arising from this meeting can be found 
in Appendix C. 
 

The group agreed to make 
this issue a top 5 priority 
scheme. 

AB 

P
age 53

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0891589,-1.6568753,954m/data=!3m1!1e3?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Milford+Mill+Rd,+Salisbury/@51.0658666,-1.7771483,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x4873ec120a814e27:0xec1ff99184551fc9!8m2!3d51.0658632!4d-1.7749596?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

CATG to discuss making this a top 5 priority so that resources are 
allocated to progress investigation of proposed solutions and to be aware 
that a request for funding is likely to be brought to a future meeting. 
 

f) 13-20-16 
 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
 
London Road, Salisbury 
 Request for crossing point 

Many children from Bishopdown Farm and Riverdown Park use this route 
to walk to the secondary schools in Church Road, Laverstock. They use 
a non-preferred route from Pearce Way under the railway bridge, along 
London Road and then cross at the roundabout into Church Road. There 
is a traffic island at the roundabout but no indication or warning to 
vehicles that this is used as a crossing point. This is a fast and 
dangerous roundabout with no speed restriction. 
 
The introduction of any formal crossing point requires a Pedestrian 
Crossing Assessment to be undertaken, this costs £1000.    
 
Graham Axtell informed the meeting that surfacing works are due to take 
place in this area in 2022/23 and therefore any recommendation could be 
incorporated in the works at this time. 
 

The group recommend that 
the crossing assessment is 
progressed at a cost of 
£1000 subject to L&FPC 
contributing 25% 

AB 

g) 13-20-17 
 
Whiteparish PC 
 
The Green, Whiteparish 

An increased number of HGV’s are turning into the green then 
discovering it narrows into Dean Lane.  They then have issues reversing 
down the oneway section of Dean Lane, many get stranded, one 
knocked the wall and road sign down outside Thyme Cottage. 
 
The PC would like the current advisory sign revised (currently just 
unsuitable for wide vehicles – consider replacing with unsuitable for 
HGVS with lorry image and red slash).  Also advice regarding it 
positioning. (Residents feel HGV drivers see the sign too late, after they 
have already committed to turning into The Green). 
 
JW presented revised sign designs to the group at a cost of £500. 
 

The group recommend that 
the signage is progressed at 
a cost of £500 subject to a 
25% PC contribution. 

AB 

P
age 54

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.088193,-1.7667898,3a,75y,89.15h,90.66t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sNbWu-tT5CR58ogr7eydvVQ!2e0!7i16384!8i8192?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

  

h) Laverstock & Ford PC 
 
The Portway - Bus Stop 
 

The group discussed an Area Board grant application for a Bus Shelter – 
see Appendix C.  The Bus Shelter will be located at the bus stop outside 
of the Alabare Centre.  This is a well used stop by those visiting the 
centre and also residents/visitors to Bradbury House Nursing home.  The 
total cost of the shelter is £7708.03 and L&FPC will fund 50% of the 
costs. 

The group recommend that a 
contribution of £3552 is made 
towards the cost of the bus 
shelter. 

AB 

6. Other Schemes 

a)  Issue No: 7134 
 
Bishopdown to Old Sarum  
Cycle Route. 
 
Direction signs. 
 

The signs are located within both Salisbury and Southern CATG areas.  
The funds for the scheme are being split COGS - £1600, Salisbury CATG 
£1600, L&FPC - £400 & Southern CATG £1200.  The work is being 
managed by Salisbury CATG. 

 Salis. 
CATG 

 
7. 

 
Date of Next CATG Meeting:    Provisonal only – 17 February 2021 
 

P
age 55

http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/area_board/issue_overview.php?id=7134


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 
Southern Wiltshire Community Area Transport Group  

Principal Engineer – Julie Watts 
 
1. Environmental & Community Implications 

1.1. Environmental and community implications were considered by the CATG during their deliberations.  The funding of projects will 
contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of environmental, social and community wellbeing in the community area, the extent 
and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project. 

 
2. Financial Implications 

2.1. All decisions must fall within the Highways funding allocated to Southern Area Board. 
2.2. If funding is allocated in line with CATG recommendations outlined in this report, and all relevant 3rd party contributions are confirmed, 

Southern Wiltshire Area Board will have a remaining Highways funding balance of £7798 subject to any local contributions not listed 
above. 

 
3. Legal Implications 

3.1. There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 
 
4. HR Implications 

4.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report. 
 
5. Equality and Inclusion Implications 

5.1 The schemes recommended to the Area Board will improve road safety for all users of the highway. 
 
6. Safeguarding implications  

6.1 There are no specific safeguarding implications related to this report. 
 

P
age 56



Southern Wiltshire CATG
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

BUDGET 2020-21
£13,676.00 CATG ALLOCATION 2020-21

£14,192.00 2019-20 underspend

Contributions

£3,125.00 6529 Downton PC Kerbing
£6,250.00 6529 Longford Estates Downton Kerbing

£400.00 7134 Laverstock & Ford PC Green Lane cycleway signing
£114.00 Redlynch PC Lover Village Signs
£417.00 Redlynch NAL Socket
£250.00 13-19-4 L&FPC Roman Road Warning signs
£213.00 13-20-4 Grimstead PC Butterfurlong Road
£250.00 13-20-6 Grimstead PC Street Nameplates
£146.00 13-20-12 Whiteparish Solar panel
£625.00 13-20-5 Winterslow Speed Limit assessment
£250.00 13-20-16 L&FPC London Rd Ped Crossing Assessment
£125.00 13-20-17 Whiteparish PC HGV signing

Total Budget 2020-2021 £40,033.00

Commitments carried forward from previous years

6529 Downton The Borough, Kerbing of the Green £15,715.00 Actual
7134 Contribution to the Green Lane Cycleway signing £1,600.00 Estimate
Redlynch NAL Socket £419.00 Actual
Lover village signs £114.00 Estimate

New schemes
13-19-4 Ford Roman Road - Warning Signs £1,000.00 Estimate
13-20-4 Grimstead, Butterfurlong Road Signing and Lining £850.00 Estimate
13-20-6 Grimstead Street Nameplates £1,000.00 Estimate
13-20-10 Longhedge - A345 Footway Feasibility & Design £2,800.00 Estimate
13-20-13 Redlynch Contribution towards Street Nameplate 
refurbishment £600.00 Actual
13-20-11  Whiteparish Post for solar panel £300.00 Estimate
13-20-12 White Parish Contribution to solar panel £285.00 Actual
13-20-5 Winterslow Weston Lane Speed Limit Assessment £2,500.00 Actual
13-20-16 L&F London Road, Salisbury - Pedestrian Crossing 
Assessment £1,000.00 Actual
13-20-17 Whiteparish The Green, HGV signing £500.00 Estimate
L&FPC 50% Contribution to installation of bus shelter on The Portway £3,552.00 Actual

Total Commitment 2020-21 £32,235.00

Balance to Spend £7,798.00

Potential new schemes

Page 57

julie.watts
Text Box
APPENDIX A



Latitude Longitude Client: Wiltshire Council
51.10601 -1.7947 http://www.google.com/maps/?q=51.10601,-1.7947 Project: 4150-MID Wiltshire October ATCs

Site: 2 - A345 Longhedge
Start Date:
Speed Limit: 40
Lat/Long: 51.10601, -1.7947

30 40 46 55

Direction
7-Day Average 

Speed
7-Day 85th %ile 

Speed

Northbound 35.0 39.5 12.7% 1.3% 0.1% 0.07%

Southbound 34.6 38.7 9.0% 0.9% 0.1% 0.76%

Combined 34.8 39.1 10.9% 1.1% 0.1% 83.64%

mph mph 10.50%

3.59%

1.15%

0.30%

Direction
Weekday 

Average Total 
Traffic

7-Day Average 
Traffic

Northbound 7360 6902

Southbound 7265 6827

Combined 14625 13729

Data annotated with '*' denotes when a given time period has been affected by data loss. For a full breakdown of data loss please refer to Data Summary.

Tracsis will retain all personal data relating to this project, including all video images, for a period of 3 months after receipt of this report and all other data files for one year. 
If you would like a copy of the personal data or wish for us to retain for a longer period, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Wednesday 14 October 2020

48315
Incidents/Observations

47789

96104

On a 7-day average

of vehicles are 
traveling 10% +2 
over PSL (46mph)

of vehicles are 
15mph over PSL 

(55mph)

of vehicles are 
travelling over 

posted speed limit 
(PSL)

Weekly Traffic Total

No incidents or observations during the survey period

40

ATC 02

Traffic Composition by Class - Total Surveyed Vehicles

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800
Northbound

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800
Southbound

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

P
age 58

julie.watts_1
Text Box
APPENDIX B



 

Grant Applications for Southern Wiltshire on 28/01/2021 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant Amount 
Required 

3929 Community 
Area Grant Bus Shelter Alabare Laverstock & Ford Parish 

Council £3552.53 

Submitted: 06/11/2020 16:05:42 

ID: 3929 

Current Status: Application Appraisal 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£501 - £5000  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
Yes  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 
The Parish Council has funds for just over half of this project. We are very keen to 
encourage residents and visitors to the Parish to make use of public transport but do not 
have funds for the whole amount.  

5. Project title? 
Bus Shelter Alabare  

6. Project summary: 
Priority has been given to locations that support those with the greatest need for public 
transport and protection from the elements. The stop serving Alabare and also Bradbury 
House which is immediately next door is used by vunerable adults and those with both 
learning and physical disabilities.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Southern Wiltshire  

Electoral Division  
Laverstock Ford and Old Sarum  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP4 6BT  

Page 59



9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 
Environment 
Health and wellbeing 
Older People 
Transport 
 
10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2020  

Total Income: 
£510887.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£669821.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£-158934.00  

Free reserves currently held: 
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£88847.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
Free or General Reserves provide a working balance to cushion the impact of uneven cash 
flow and provide a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies. 
At 48 of current precept they are just adequate to cover all contingencies and uneven cash 
flow associated with several large capital projects across the Parish.  

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £7708.03   
Total required from Area Board £3552.53  

Expenditure 
(Itemised 
expenditure) 

£ 
Income 
(Itemised 
income) 

Tick if income 
confirmed £ 

Alabare Shelter 7332.00 Bus Shelter 
Budget yes  3779.47 

Bench and 
Install 376.03 Bus Shelter 

Budget yes  376.03 
                                        
Total £7708.03     £4155.5 

Page 60



11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 
this financial year?  
No  

 
12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Southern Wiltshire 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 
benefit your local community? 
Alabare is a charity supporting vulnerable homeless and marginalised people. Its aim is to 
help them transform their lives providing accommodation and helping them gain the skills 
confidence and opportunities to live a fulfilled life. The Garden Centre is part of their Old 
Sarum Development Centre which offers day activities to adults with learning disabilities 
autism and poor mental health. The centre also has a fully equipped I.T. suite offering 
courses to the general public including the ECDL - European Computer Driving Licence. 
Old Sarum Development Centre is fully accredited to NOCN National Open College 
Network qualifications. These qualifications help gain the necessary skills to access 
employment work experience or other educational opportunities. Immediately next door to 
the Alabare site is Bradbury House. This is a Wiltshire Council run residential care home 
offering emergency and planned short term respite care for up to 10 people with a learning 
difficulty some of whom may have additional physical needs. All accommodation is on the 
ground floor and in single rooms. There are shared recreational rooms and accessible 
gardens. Old Sarum Development Centre and Bradbury House are 2 miles north of 
Salisbury and can be accessed via local buses that run from Salisbury and Amesbury. The 
bus stop is on a large layby immediately outside the Garden Centre and within easy reach of 
Bradbury House. It is an exposed site on the side of a busy road and with no natural shelter. 
Both organisations have staff and clients using the bus service and are very happy to support 
our application. Our intention is to provide a 3 Bay partially enclosed shelter on a concrete 
hardstanding with a central bench but also plenty of room to accommodate wheelchairs. 
This supports some of the most vulnerable members of our community whilst contributing 
to the encouraged use of public transport and all the associated environmental benefits. As 
well as serving the staff and residents the Garden Centre and Cafe provides a vital source of 
income for Alabare so anything that encourages visitors to the centre is a welcome source of 
revenue for them.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
We will seek feedback from the managing team to assess the impact on their users.  

15. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those 
involved in your project 
All works will be contracted to a Third Party who have their own arrangements for their 
staff.  

16. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it? 
It will be completed within this application. Future budget calculations will include a 
provision for maintenance.  

Page 61



17. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 
None  

18. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 
available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 
quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 
section above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.  

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 
& Safety and Environmental assessments.  

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable): 
yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land 
yes I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project 
has been received prior to submission of this grant application.  

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified.  

 

 

 

Page 62



 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

1. Summary of recommendations 
a) 13-19-4 

Laverstock & Ford PC 
Green Lane junction Roman 
Road. Signing improvements 

The group voted on whether or not to erect the signage at a cost of £400.  The results were 4-3 
against therefore the group recommends that the signage is not progressed.  

b) 13-20-5 
Winterslow PC 
Weston Lane Speed limit review 
 

 
The group recommends that the speed limit assessment is progressd at a cost of £2500 subject to 
a 25% contribution from Winterslow Parish Council. 

 
c) 13-20-15  

Laverstock & Ford PC 
Clarendon Park PC 
Milford Mill Road – Volume of 
traffic (& no. of vehicles 
contravening 7.5t weight limit) 
 

The group agreed to make this issue a top 5 priority scheme to progress investigation of proposed 
solutions and to be aware that a request for funding is likely to be brought to a future meeting. 

 

d) 13-20-16 
Laverstock & Ford PC 
London Road, Salisbury 
 Request for crossing point 
 

The group recommend that the crossing assessment is progressed at a cost of £1000 subject to 
L&FPC contributing 25%. 

 

e) 13-20-17 
Whiteparish PC 
The Green, Whiteparish 
HGV warning signs  
 

The group recommend that the signage is progressed at a cost of £500 subject to a 25% PC 
contribution. 

 

f) Laverstock & Ford PC 
The Portway - Bus Shelter 
 

The group recommend that a 50% contribution of £3552 is given to the L&F PC towards the cost 
of the bus shelter. 

P
age 63

https://wiltshire.highway-iams.uk/Live/HIAMS/WebFloManOrder/?RP=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre&HM=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre
https://wiltshire.highway-iams.uk/Live/HIAMS/WebFloManOrder/?RP=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre&HM=/Live/HIAMS/AppCentre
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0891589,-1.6568753,954m/data=!3m1!1e3?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Milford+Mill+Rd,+Salisbury/@51.0658666,-1.7771483,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x4873ec120a814e27:0xec1ff99184551fc9!8m2!3d51.0658632!4d-1.7749596?hl=en-GB
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.088193,-1.7667898,3a,75y,89.15h,90.66t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sNbWu-tT5CR58ogr7eydvVQ!2e0!7i16384!8i8192?hl=en-GB


 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN WILTSHIRE COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP 02 DECEMBER 2020 
 
Southern Wiltshire Community Area Transport Group  

Principal Engineer – Julie Watts 
 
1. Environmental & Community Implications 

1.1. Environmental and community implications were considered by the CATG during their deliberations.  The funding of projects will 
contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of environmental, social and community wellbeing in the community area, the extent 
and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project. 

 
2. Financial Implications 

2.1. All decisions must fall within the Highways funding allocated to Southern Area Board. 
2.2. If funding is allocated in line with CATG recommendations outlined in this report, and all relevant 3rd party contributions are confirmed, 

Southern Wiltshire Area Board will have a remaining Highways funding balance of £7798 subject to any local contributions not listed 
above. 

 
3. Legal Implications 

3.1. There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 
 
4. HR Implications 

4.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report. 
 
5. Equality and Inclusion Implications 

5.1 The schemes recommended to the Area Board will improve road safety for all users of the highway. 
 
6. Safeguarding implications  

6.1 There are no specific safeguarding implications related to this report. 
 

P
age 64



 

Report to Southern Wiltshire Area Board 

Date of Meeting 28/01/2021 

Title of Report Community Area Grant funding 

Purpose of the report: 
To consider the applications for funding listed below  

Applicant Amount requested 

Applicant: Salisbury Older People's champion 
Project Title: Taking afternoon tea to isolated older 
people 
 
View full application 
  

£200.00 (NB: 
application approved 
under delegated officer 
authority in December) 

Applicant: My Salisbury 
Project Title: Community Journalism and Media Training 
Project 
 
View full application 
  

£4479.97 

Applicant: Devenish Bradshaw Trust 
Project Title: City to Countryside Dog Trails - Digital and 
On-site  
 
View full application 
  

£940.00 

Applicant: ArtCare 
Project Title: ArtCare Well-being TV at Salisbury District 
Hospital 
 
View full application 
  

£2500.00 

Applicant: 1st Downton Scout Group 
Project Title: 1st Downton Scout Group Scout Hut 
Refurbishment 
 
View full application 
  

£4500.00 

Applicant: Alderbury Parish Council 
Project Title: Speed Indicator Device for Alderbury 
 
View full application 
  

£1000.00 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 12

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3970
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3989
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3979
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3982
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3969
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3992


1. Background 
Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to 
them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere to the Area Board 
Grants Guidance 
 
The funding criteria and application forms are available on the council’s website.  

2. Main Considerations 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that funding awarded in the 2020/2021 year 
is made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded. 
 
2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards. 
 
2.3. Councillors will need to be satisfied that the applications meet the Community 
Area Board grants criteria.  

3. Environmental & Community Implications 
Grant Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, 
social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of 
which will be dependent upon the individual project.  

4. Financial Implications 
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure.  

5. Legal Implications 
There are no specific legal implications related to this report.  

6. Human Resources Implications 
There are no specific human resources implications related to this report.  

7. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in 
order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and 
Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes, where they meet the funding criteria.  

8. Safeguarding Implications 
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place 
to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults.  

 

 

 

 

Page 66

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm


9. Applications for consideration  

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3970 

salisbury older 
people's champion 

Taking afternoon tea to 
isolated older people 

£200.00 

Project Description: 
To help alleviate isolation by delivering a gift of afternoon tea the last weekend of 
January to 40 older people living alone isolating or shielding in localities in the 
Southern Area Board beyond the Salisbury periphery.  
 
To involve good neighbours, covid mutual aid schemes, domicilliary and other care 
providers, to nominate individuals meeting the criteria.  
 
Tea packs to include community information quiz physical and cultural activities. 
Volunteers to bake aware of dietayu requirements and deliver whilst mindful of 
GDPR and vulnerability. This will also provide an opportunity to consult on Silver 
Salisbury 2021 programme and assess the potential and viability for further 
geographic reach for future events.  NB this project has been delayed by lockdown 
3 
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
The funding award was agreed in consultation with the chairman in December 
under delegated officer authority, as the intention was to purchase the contents for 
the afternoon tea packs in early/mid January.  The area board is therefore asked 
to note that this funding request has previously been approved. 
 

Proposal 
That the Area Board notes this application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3989 My Salisbury 
Community Journalism and 
Media Training Project 

£4479.97 

Project Description: 
Community Journalism and media training for a volunteer group of content 
creators. Utilising the lovesalisbury.co.uk platform which targets South Wiltshire 
we intend to train volunteers in media and journalism skills through workshops and 
training programmes. The aim is to cover events activities and stories that wouldn’t 
receive coverage from commercial news outputs.  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
This is a new venture for South Wiltshire, and will, in time, replace with an even 
stronger ‘grass roots/community feel’ the previous offer from Spire FM.  The 
organisation is in its first year of operation, and a not for profit outfit, aspiring to 
involve and professionally train volunteers as part of its community journalism 
strategy.   
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

Page 67

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3970
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3989


 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3979 

Devenish 
Bradshaw Trust 

City to Countryside Dog Trails 
- Digital and On-site  

£940.00 

Project Description: 
Dog trails on-line information and on-site infrastructure for dog owners to have 
enhanced opportunities for exercising their pets while minimising negative impacts 
on livestock wildlife and other greenspace users in Laverstock and Ford and 
neighbouring Parishes. 
  
Who will benefit and how: 
Old people and young people both derive enormous benefit from dogs whether 
they own a dog or enjoy interacting with dogs they meet. Dog owners and people 
who interact with dogs are proven to gain both physical and mental benefits. Dogs 
are deployed as care animals in care homes and for people in suffering for this 
reason. The majority of dog owners report that dogs have helped them cope with 
coronavirus lockdown restrictions. Dog owners are the most frequent visitors to 
parks and the countryside and play an important role in helping to maintain 
security in greenspaces. Dogs encourage people to explore the natural 
environment and well behaved dogs are avid watchers and sniffers of wildlife 
drawing their owners attention to all manner of delights from hedgehogs to frogs. 
Dog ownership is booming as people increasingly look towards staycations as the 
holiday option of choice. Local dog owners persuaded to exercise their pets on 
routes from their houses will help reduce traffic by not driving to alternative 
locations further afield. The negative impacts of dogs on wildlife and livestock are 
well documented as are issues with dog mess presenting health hazards for 
livestock and people. Our project aims to provide opportunities for dog owners to 
exercise their pets build a stronger bond between person and dog and also enjoy 
the rich natural heritage of Laverstock and surrounding Parishes. We own 55 
Acres of watermeadows which are bordered by a chalk stream and full of wildlife. 
We want dog walkers to enjoy enhanced managed access through our 
watermeadows and also through the urban parks country park open down land 
and farmed countryside in the local area. This project will help dog walkers find 
new routes to exercise their dogs enhance facilities for dog owners in the local 
area and encourage more dog owners to visit dog friendly cafes and pubs and stay 
at dog friendly holiday accommodation in Southern Wiltshire. The Devenish 
Bradshaw Trust is a new landholding charity set up in 2018. Our charitable 
objectives are 1 to preserve conserve and protect the land known as the water 
meadows in Laverstock the water meadows and its chalk valley riverine habitats 2 
to advance the education of the community in Laverstock and the surrounding 
areas in agriculture horticulture and environmentally-based educational projects 
concerning the preservation conservation and management of the water meadows 
3 to provide or assist in the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time 
occupation for the benefit of thepublic in the interest of their social welfare 4 to 
advance promote or carry out such other charitable purposes as the charity 
trustees in their absolute discretion from time to time think fit. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

Page 68

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3979


 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3982 ArtCare 
ArtCare Well-being TV at 
Salisbury District Hospital 

£2500.00 

Project Description: 
To establish a designated ArtCare link on Hospedia bedside TVs at Salisbury 
District Hospital SDH to broadcast well-being activities such as live music theatre 
storytelling art and craft tutorials. Activity will be populated on ArtCares website 
and be available at the bedside for free to all SDH patients staff and local 
community.  
 
This will complement our wider activity programme including the Elevate project 
bringing live music and arts activity to patients on the wards which we are currently 
unable to deliver in its full capacity due to Covid restrictions. This includes working 
with local 3rd sector organisations to expand content for SDH patients and 
introduce them to creative opportunities in the local area. 
  
Who will benefit and how: 
Wellbeing TV would potentially reach 420 SDH patients 24hrs a day every day of 
the year. With new content regularly being uploaded from the ArtCare website long 
stay patients could access a variety of activity to suit their own tastes and well-
being needs. Trained hospital volunteers would support vulnerable patients in how 
to access the content which is all free currently only the radio is free via Hospedia 
and patients have no access to ArtCares well-being resources . This online 
resource would also be available to hospital staff to support their mental health the 
local community and beyond via the ArtCare website. Being available online and 
via the bedside TVs there is huge scope to connect people to community 
organisations live streaming links from local arts heritage partners and build-in 
social prescribing information via GP links. Patients will also be given opportunities 
to co-design content. This will be an invaluable resource for staff to offer patients 
with dementia as they can utilise the content at any time day or night to reassure 
and calm as well as using activities to engage patients. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3969 

1st Downton 
Scout Group 

1st Downton Scout Group Scout 
Hut Refurbishment 

£4500.00 

Project Description: 
Our project is to make our Scout Hut fit for purpose given our increasing number of 
young people by reconfiguring it to increase the number of toilets making them all 
gender-neutral with better accessibility with sufficient handwashing facilities and to 
enlarge and improve the inside kitchen facilities as well as adding an external 
kitchen and wash-up. These improved handwashing facilities including hand gel 
dispenses and increased space for social distancing will provide a more Covid-
safe space. 

Page 69

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3982
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3969


 
  
Who will benefit and how: 
All Scout Hut users will benefit from gender neutral toilets with improved 
accessibility handwashing facilities hot water and refillable soap dispensers. The 
current urinals are extremely water wasteful as they have automatic flushing which 
occurs every 15 minutes. New toilets with dual flush will reduce our water 
consumption as well as the volume going into our septic tank. Our plan is to end 
up with x2 gender-neutral toilets and one accessible one with three handwashing 
basins. Refurbishing the kitchen to provide hygienic facilities will enable our Scout 
Group of over 80 young people other local community users and other Scout and 
Guide groups which use the hut eg during camps in the summer to experience 
better facilities. The external kitchen and wash-up area will create an outdoor 
environment where social distancing is possible that can be used during section 
evenings camps and the suchlike by young people and leaders. It will enable us to 
cater for events and extend the range of activities that we can organise. It will also 
allow more young people to use the kitchen and learn the life skills of cooking and 
food hygiene during Beaver Cubs or Scout meetings. We have a large waiting list 
and plans were afoot to pilot a second Beaver Colony and Cub Pack just prior to 
lock-down and we also have plans to develop an Explorer Unit 14-18 years. These 
are needed as given our relatively rural location there are limited accessible 
facilities locally for young people and we have also recently seen a rise in anti-
social behaviour in the area. During both lockdowns we have managed to deliver a 
virtual programme to support our young people. When we return to face-to face 
Scouting a key focus was and will continue to be working with our young people to 
support their mental health and well-being 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

3992 

Alderbury Parish 
Council 

Speed Indicator Device for 
Alderbury 

£1000.00 

Project Description: 
To purchase and install a portable solar powered speed indicator device. The 
device will be used at various locations to address serious speeding issues. The 
SID will augment and support the work of the local Speedwatch team and provide 
meaningful data for analysis.  
  
Who will benefit and how: 
There is a significant problem with speeding vehicles in the village. This has been 
evidenced through previous Metrocount surveys and has been addressed in part 
by the local team of Speedwatch volunteers. However residents still report their 
concerns and the SID will help to slow traffic speeds further and improve highway 
safety. Local residents visitors and road users will all benefit. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

Page 70

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=3992


 

 

No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report 
 
Report Author: 
Karen Linaker 
Community Engagement Manager 
01722 434697 
karen.linaker@wiltshire.gov.uk  

Page 71

mailto:karen.linaker@wiltshire.gov.uk




Grant Applications for Southern Wiltshire on 28/01/2021 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant 
Amount 

Required 

3970 

Health and 

Wellbeing 

Grant 

Taking afternoon tea to isolated 

older people 

salisbury older people's 

champion 
£200.00 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  Health and Wellbeing Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  £200 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?   No  

4. Project title?  Taking afternoon tea to isolated older people  

5. Project summary: 
To help alleviate isolation by delivering a gift of afternoon tea the last weekend of January to 40 

older people living alone isolating or shielding in localities in the Southern Area Board beyond the 

Salisbury periphery. To involve good neighbours covid mutual aid schemes domicilliary and other 

care providers to nominate individuals meeting the criteria. Tea packs to include community 

information quiz physical and cultural activities. Volunteers to bake aware of dietaru requirements 

and deliver whilst mindful of GDPR and vulnerability. This will also provide an opportunity to 

consult on Silver Salisbury 2021 programme and assess the potential and viability for further 

geographic reach for future events  

6. Which Area Board are you applying to?  Southern Wiltshire , SP1,SP4,SP5  

7. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:  Health and wellbeing, Leisure and 

Culture, Older People, Our Community 

 

8. We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts  

9. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £400.00   

Total required from Area Board £200.00  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

the tea boxes 

and contents 
160.00 

volunteer 

time 3 days 
yes  150.00 

stationery 

printing postage 

mileage 

40.00 

volunteer 

co-ordinator 

time 1 day 

 50.00 

Volunteer time 200.00    

Total £400     £200 

Page 73



10. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?   Yes  Amesbury, Southern Wiltshire, South West Wiltshire 

11. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 

your local community? 
Forty older people living Laverstock Milford Bishopdown Farm Old Sarum Longhenge Odstock 

Alderbury and Britford alone or isolated ie older couples or carers especially those identified as 

vulnerable for Covid purposes are our target recipients of the tea boxes. They will be nominated 

by key connectors ie Covid support groups faith groups local neighbours or in response to project 

promotion prompting local people to be aware of neighbours who may need support. This two-

way initiative involves requesting nominators to also be collect and deliver the teas adding to 

community cohesion. We are not just delivering tea we hope that this initiative will introduce 

people to Celebrating Age activities physical exercise groups financialdebt advice and access to 

the internet. The target group will have a welcome caller to break into a lonely afternoon. 

Additionally the afternoon tea project will also include questionnaire and contact details as part of 

consultation to inform the planning of the Silver Salisbury 2021 programme. This work will 

hopefully result in widening representation of the Silver Salisbury planning group  

12. How will you monitor this? 
Basic monitoring will be the recording of groups involved volunteer involvement at all levels and 

the location of people nominated to receive a tea box. Follow up will be numbers of responses to 

materials in the gift bags and hits on the Silver Salisbury website in the two weeks following. 

More complex will be feedback on the consultation on planning for the autumn 2021 programme 

and the sustaining of new members on the planning group. The effect on recipients may be 

evidenced by thank you notes we aim to follow up with distribution of the hard copy Silver 

Salisbury 2021 programme  

13. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
The Silver Salisbury Group is committed to safe practice in our work for and with older people. 

We hold a central record of all involved in the organisation and information about our 

safeguarding responsibilities is issued to all regardless of salary status. As Salisbury Older Peoples 

Champion i come within Wiltshire Council remit I am the responsible person within Silver 

Salisbury Group.  

14. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
This is a one off event to alleviate isolation for older people at the darkestlowest time of the year 

exacerbated by Covid-19 and simultaneously consult older people on the forthcoming programme 

of events to celebrate International Older Peoples Day October 2021. Silver Salisbury is now a 

registered voluntary group and in the process of seeking longer term funding to sustain this annual 

programme of events  

15. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 
Not a building project but this is the only box I can insert this information into and I wish to 

maintain transparency with you. This project to include the localities in the Southern Area Board 

adjacent to Salisbury boundary is an extension of the Salisbury project organised in my role of 

Salisbury Older Peoples Champion for which independent funding is already secured. Funding has 

been awarded by the Health and Wellbeing Group of Amesbury Area Board to include older 

Page 74



residents in that area to participate in this project and decision from the South West Wiltshire Area 

Board to cover Quidhampton Netherhampton and Wilton which border Salisbury to the West is 

pending.  

 

Community Area 

Grant 

Community Journalism and 

Media Training Project 
My Salisbury £4479.97 

1. Project title?  Community Journalism and Media Training Project  

2. Project summary:  Community Journalism and media training for a volunteer group of content 

creators. Utilising the lovesalisbury.co.uk platform which targets South Wiltshire we intend to 

train volunteers in media and journalism skills through workshops and training programmes.The 

aim to cover events activities and stories that wouldnt receive coverage from commercial news 

outputs.  

3. Which Area Board are you applying to?  Southern Wiltshire  

4. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: Our Community 

 

5. Finance: This is our first year of operating 

Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £14409.97   

Total required from Area Board £4479.97  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Website Hosting 230.00 Fixtures Fittings yes  2500.00 

Rent 7200.00 
Space Share 

Agreement 
yes  7200.00 

Fixture Fittings 2500.00 Website Hosting yes  230.00 

IT Equipment 1856.99    

Camera 

Equipment 
1197.00    

Office Software 372.00    

Projector Screen 698.99    

Printing 234.99    

Monitor 

Speakers 
120.00    

Total £14409.97     £9930 

6. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
Volunteers will benefit from free training and use of professional equipment to learn new skills. 

They will then be enabled through this training and free equipment hire to be able to share what is 

Page 75



happening in and around South Wiltshire to the wider community. The focus is one telling 

positive stories covering events and highlighting interesting aspects of our community. Our 

intention is to engage with as diverse sections of the South Wiltshire as possible.  

7. How will you monitor this? 
We will monitor volunteer numbers and their frequency of engagement through workshop and 

event registration. We will also track their input through the content they are creating. We will 

also track wider community engagement through website analytics and social media engagement.  

8. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
Our safeguarding policy is drawn up in consultation with a senior safeguarding social worker at 

Wiltshire Council Hannah Munns. All staff will be required to attend safeguarding training and be 

DBS checked. We will hold a record of all training and DBS checks centrally and obtain multiple 

references for all staff and volunteers onboarded to the project. Andrew Munns will be safeguard 

lead and take overall ownership of safeguarding. We have detailed safeguarding and safe working 

policies that cover reporting privacy health and safety first aid and IT.  

9. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
We provide our training for free and have negotiated free use of space to carry out our training. 

The setup costs other than hosting of the website and some minor costs incurred throughout the 

year insurance DBS and other costs will be covered through fundraising events and voluntary 

donations from volunteers towards training costs these are not mandatory.  

 

3979 
Community 

Area Grant 

City to Countryside Dog Trails - 

Digital and On-site  

Devenish Bradshaw 

Trust 
£940.00 

1. Project title? 
City to Countryside Dog Trails - Digital and On-site  

2. Project summary: 
Dog trails on-line information and on-site infrastructure for dog owners to have enhanced 

opportunities for exercising their pets while minimising negative impacts on livestock wildlife and 

other greenspace users in Laverstock and Ford and neighbouring Parishes.   

3. Electoral Division  
Laverstock Ford and Old Sarum  

4. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:  Children & Young People, Economy, 

Environment, Health and wellbeing, Leisure and Culture, Older People, Our Community, 

Transport, Safer communities 

 

5a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2019  

Page 76



Total Income: 
£4500.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£3114.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£1386.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£0.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
We have no free reserves available for this project. The reserves we have are earmarked for 

emergency estate tasks as they arise such as fallen trees on permissive paths.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

5b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £940.00   

Total required from Area Board £940.00  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Trail logo design 260.00 
Southern Area 

Board 
 260.00 

Smart Survey 

fees 
180.00 

Southern Area 

Board 
 180.00 

Signage 

materials 
500.00 

Southern Area 

Board 
 500.00 

Total £940     £940 

6. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
Old people and young people both derive enormous benefit from dogs whether they own a dog or 

enjoy interacting with dogs they meet. Dog owners and people who interact with dogs are proven 

to gain both physical and mental benefits. Dogs are deployed as care animals in care homes and 

for people in suffering for this reason. The majority of dog owners report that dogs have helped 

them cope with coronavirus lockdown restrictions. Dog owners are the most frequent visitors to 

parks and the countryside and play an important role in helping to maintain security in 

greenspaces. Dogs encourage people to explore the natural environment and well behaved dogs 

are avid watchers and sniffers of wildlife drawing their owners attention to all manner of delights 

from hedgehogs to frogs. Dog ownership is booming as people increasingly look towards 

staycations as the holiday option of choice. Local dog owners persuaded to exercise their pets on 

Page 77



routes from their houses will help reduce traffic by not driving to alternative locations further 

afield. The negative impacts of dogs on wildlife and livestock are well documented as are issues 

with dog mess presenting health hazards for livestock and people. Our project aims to provide 

opportunities for dog owners to exercise their pets build a stronger bond between person and dog 

and also enjoy the rich natural heritage of Laverstock and surrounding Parishes. We own 55 Acres 

of watermeadows which are bordered by a chalk stream and full of wildlife. We want dog walkers 

to enjoy enhanced managed access through our watermeadows and also through the urban parks 

country park open down land and farmed countryside in the local area. This project will help dog 

walkers find new routes to exercise their dogs enhance facilities for dog owners in the local area 

and encourage more dog owners to visit dog friendly cafes and pubs and stay at dog friendly 

holiday accommodation in Southern Wiltshire. The Devenish Bradshaw Trust is a new 

landholding charity set up in 2018. Our charitable objectives are 1 to preserve conserve and 

protect the land known as the water meadows in Laverstock the water meadows and its chalk 

valley riverine habitats 2 to advance the education of the community in Laverstock and the 

surrounding areas in agriculture horticulture and environmentally-based educational projects 

concerning the preservation conservation and management of the water meadows 3 to provide or 

assist in the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation for the benefit of 

thepublic in the interest of their social welfare 4 to advance promote or carry out such other 

charitable purposes as the charity trustees in their absolute discretion from time to time think fit.  

7. How will you monitor this? 
We will use smart surveys promoted through social media to help design the dog trail routes and 

ascertain the baseline for dog walking at present. We will have follow up annual surveys to gauge 

how useful the dog trails project has been as far as increasing the amount of dog exercise in the 

area decreasing the negative impacts of dog walking and increased interest in the natural 

environment by dog walkers.  

8. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
Our organisation has initially focussed on a land holding function in the first two years but all 

trustees have had Disclosure and Barring Service checks for other roles. Our Chair Jane Wilkinson 

is ultimately responsible for safeguarding and we will be applying for DBS checks for all Trustees 

and Staff who will be carrying out functions for the Trust where safeguarding applies before these 

activities commence.  

9. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
We are crowd funding the leaflet printing element of the project and will continue to do so. We 

are also applying to Heritage Lottery Fund and Landfill Tax funds for a major grant to establish an 

all weather path across the water meadows for cyclists and the school run. This project is being 

designed so maintenance of our facilities are funded from other sources for the long term. Our 

watermeadows are in a Higher Tier Countryside Stewardship Agreement which generates enough 

revenue together with volunteer help to manage and maintain on-site facilities over the next ten 

years. We plan to upgrade this Agreement to an Environmental Land Management Scheme 

Agreement in 2024.  

 

Community Area 

Grant 

ArtCare Well-being TV at 

Salisbury District Hospital 
ArtCare £2500.00 

Page 78



1. Project title?  ArtCare Well-being TV at Salisbury District Hospital  

2. Project summary: 
To establish a designated ArtCare link on Hospedia bedside TVs at Salisbury District Hospital 

SDH to broadcast well-being activities such as live music theatre storytelling art and craft 

tutorials. Activity will be populated on ArtCares website and be available at the bedsode for free 

to all SDH patients staff and local community. This will complement our wider activity 

programme including the Elevate project bringing live music and arts activity to patients on the 

wards which we are currently unable to deliver in its full capacity due to Covid restrictions. This 

includes working with local 3rd sector organisations to expand content for SDH patients and 

introduce them to creative opportunities in the local area.  

3. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Southern Wiltshire  

4. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:  Children & Young People, Health and 

wellbeing, Leisure and Culture, Older People, Our Community 

 

5a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
04/2020  

Total Income: 
£178101.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£206171.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£-28070.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£28721.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
ArtCare is a charitably funded department at SDH. The SDH Charitable Trust Stars Appeal is a 

major funder of ArtCare and Elevate programmes however its funds are committed to projects 

across the hospital. Similarly ArtCares reserves are committed to a range of projects for the 

financial year ahead and can cover all the time needed to deliver the wider wellbeing project as 

well as 1500 towards the set up fee for the designated ArtCare link on the Hospedia system. This 

one off technical set up cost of 7500 VAT@ 20 Total 9000 which we are asking the 3 LABs to 

support with the matched funding coming from our own reserves. The ongoing annual service 

charge of 2250 will be met within ArtCares existing budget going forward. Re last years deficit 

there were projects that overlapped accounting years grant funding periods.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

Page 79



5b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £9000.00   

Total required from Area Board £2500.00  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

set up of channel 

on Hospedia 
9000.00 ArtCare yes  1500.00 

  Salisbury Area 

board 
 2500.00 

  
Southern 

Wiltshire Area 

Board 

 2500.00 

Total £9000     £6500 

6. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?  
Yes  

 

7. If so, which Area Boards?  Salisbury, South West Wiltshire 

8. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
Wellbeing TV would potentially reach 420 SDH patients 24hrs a day every day of the year. With 

new content regularly being uploaded from the ArtCare website long stay patients could access a 

variety of activity to suit their own tastes and well-being needs. Trained hospital volunteers would 

support vulnerable patients in how to access the content which is all free currently only the radio 

is free via Hospedia and patients have no access to ArtCares well-being resources . This online 

resource would also be available to hospital staff to support their mental health the local 

community and beyond via the ArtCare website. Being available online and via the bedside TVs 

there is huge scope to connect people to community organisations live streaming links from local 

arts heritage partners and build-in social prescribing information via GP links. Patients will also be 

given opportunities to co-design content. This will be an invaluable resource for staff to offer 

patients with dementia as they can utilise the content at any time day or night to reassure and calm 

as well as using activities to engage patients.  

9. How will you monitor this? 
ArtCare evaluates every project and monitors numbers benefiting from activity. This project offers 

both quantitative and qualitative data. We will be able to collate numbers of views on the channel 

and analyse the most popular content. We will also carry out regular surveys inviting staff patients 

and public to evaluate the on line content and work with ArtCare to co-design future content.  

10. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 

Page 80



ArtCare adheres to all SDH safeguarding and risk assessment policies of the wider Trust and 

completes annual training. All ArtCare staff and freelancers are DBS checked and the 

management are stringent in ensuring delivery is of the highest of standards and in line with 

current organisational procedures.  

11. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
The future maintenance costs for the link will be covered within ArtCares annual budget.All 

content for the channel and hours needed to plan and prepare materials are funded by the main 

ArtCare Elevate project  

 

Community Area 

Grant 

1st Downton Scout Group Scout 

Hut Refurbishment 

1st Downton Scout 

Group 
£4500.00 

1. Project title?  1st Downton Scout Group Scout Hut Refurbishment  

2. Project summary: 
Our project is to make our Scout Hut fit for purpose given our increasing number of young people 

by reconfiguring it to increase the number of toilets making them all gender-neutral with better 

accessibility with sufficient handwashing facilities and to enlarge and improve the inside kitchen 

facilities as well as adding an external kitchen and wash-up. These improved handwashing 

facilities including hand gel dispenses and increased space for social distancing will provide a 

more Covid-safe space.  

3. Which Area Board are you applying to?  Southern Wiltshire, Downton and Ebble Valley  

4. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?  SP5 3PY  

5. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:  Children & Young People, Health and 

wellbeing, Our Community 

6. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts:  03/2020  

Total Income:  £21144.98   Total Expenditure:  £25781.58  

Surplus/Deficit for the year:  £-4636.80  

Free reserves currently held:  (money not committed to other projects/operating costs)  

£13525.41  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
The Group is primarily reliant upon income from subscriptions and two large fundraising events 

that we hold each year namely a BBQ at the Downton Cuckoo Fair and by holding the village 

fireworks evening. These events are responsible for the bulk of our income. We have raised 14500 

towards the Scout hut refurbishment. However our income has been severely curtailed this year 

with the cancellation of both of these events in 2020 and the Cuckoo Fair has already been 

cancelled for 2021. We are therefore seeking grants to fill the gap towards the minimum of 21500 

Page 81



that we need. We have this year received the Wilts Council C-19 rate relief and the Trustees have 

allocated 50 percent of these funds to building improvement. The other 50 percent has been 

allocated to general running costs of the Scout Group. We have also approached Downton Parish 

Council for a contribution of 2500 funding and await their decision.  

6b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £21500.00   

Total required from Area Board £4500.00  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Demolition and 

clearance 
1800.00 

Group 

Fundraising 

Events prior to 

FY19/20 

yes  4500.00 

Building 

materials labour 
7500.00 

Co-op Local 

Community 

Fund 2020 

yes  3000.00 

Electrical work 

water heaters 
1700.00 

50% of Wilts 

Council Rate 

Relief C-19 

yes  5000.00 

Sanitaryware 1500.00 

HMRC Gift Aid 

payments, 

drawing on subs 

paid since 2016 

yes  2000.00 

Kitchenware 4500.00 
Downton Parish 

Council 
yes  2000.00 

Plumbing works 1500.00 
Redlynch Parish 

Council 
yes  500.00 

External kitchen 

and wash-up 
1500.00    

Contingency 1500.00    

Total £21500     £17000 

7. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
All Scout Hut users will benefit from gender neutral toilets with improved accessibility 

handwashing facilities hot water and refillable soap dispensers. The current urinals are extremely 

water wasteful as they have automatic flushing which occurs every 15 minutes. New toilets with 

dual flush will reduce our water consumption as well as the volume going into our septic tank. 

Our plan is to end up with x2 gender-neutral toilets and one accessible one with three 

handwashing basins. Refurbishing the kitchen to provide hygienic facilities will enable our Scout 

Group of over 80 young people other local community users and other Scout and Guide groups 

which use the hut eg during camps in the summer to experience better facilities. The external 

kitchen and wash-up area will create an outdoor environment where social distancing is possible 

Page 82



that can be used during section evenings camps and the suchlike by young people and leaders. It 

will enable us to cater for events and extend the range of activities that we can organise. It will 

also allow more young people to use the kitchen and learn the life skills of cooking and food 

hygiene during Beaver Cubs or Scout meetings. We have a large waiting list and plans were afoot 

to pilot a second Beaver Colony and Cub Pack just prior to lock-down and we also have plans to 

develop an Explorer Unit 14-18 years. These are needed as given our relatively rural location there 

are limited accessible facilities locally for young people and we have also recently seen a rise in 

anti-social behaviour in the area. During both lockdowns we have managed to deliver a virtual 

programme to support our young people. When we return to face-to face Scouting a key focus was 

and will continue to be working with our young people to support their mental health and well-

being.  

8. How will you monitor this? 
The project will be reported on in our Trustees Annual Report. We can seek feedback and 

testimonials from the young people themselves Section Leaders and other Scout Hut users. We 

will also monitor the number of events that are held at the Scout Hut each year in particular the 

number of users outside Downton Scout Group. We hope having better facilities will enable us to 

market the Scout Hut and obtain a small income from letting it.  

9. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
It is the Policy of The Scouts to safeguard the welfare of all children young people and adults at 

risk by protecting them from neglect and from physical sexual and emotional harm. Our 

safeguarding policy applies to all adults including the Board of Trustees volunteers and anyone 

working on behalf of The Scouts. Its the responsibility of all adults to make sure that their 

behaviours are appropriate at all times as laid out in the code of practice Young People First 

known within Scouting as The Yellow Card. The Yellow Card sets out a Code of Practice which 

is essential for all adults in The Scouts to follow. All our Leader volunteers go through a selection 

panel and volunteers are DBS checked with a central record held on our national Scouting 

database Compass. Our Group Scout Leader is the safeguarding lead with support from the 

Safeguarding Team at national Scout Headquarters.  

10. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
Once the project is complete Scouts will continue to run programmes for our young people using 

income from subscription and fund raising including Scout Hut hire.  

 

 Community 

Area Grant 

Speed Indicator Device for 

Alderbury 

Alderbury Parish 

Council 
£1000.00 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?   £1k 

 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  Yes  

Page 83



4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 
The Council is seeking 50 funding towards the purchase of a SID. The Council carries reserves 

but these are currently underpinning a major capital scheme - the Village Hall refurbishment. 

Road safety is a WC responsibility which the Council already supports through volunteer 

Speedwatch activities.  

5. Project title?  Speed Indicator Device for Alderbury  

6. Project summary: 
To purchase and install a portable solar powered speed indicator device. The device will be used 

at various locations to address serious speeding issues. The SID will augment and support the 

work of the local Speedwatch team and provide meaningful data for analysis.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? Southern Wiltshire  

Electoral Division  Alderbury and Whiteparish  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?  SP2 2NY  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: Transport, Safer communities 

 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
11/2020  

Total Income: 
£342441.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£437981.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£60000.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£32793.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
Currently 60k of reserves are allocated for the Village Hall project this will reduce free reserves 

significantly. Overspend on the capital project would put significant pressure on the Councils 

finances. The Council has borrowing of 90k from PWLB. While the financial situation is secure it 

would be imprudent to fund further projects from reserves at this time. Figures provided are 

projected budget outturn 202021.  

Page 84



10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £2500.00   

Total required from Area Board £1000.00  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Evolis SID 1608.00 
Budget 

allocation 
yes  1463.00 

Spare Batteries 153.00    

External battery 

charger 
108.00    

Mounting 

brackets 
44.00    

Mounting posts 300.00    

Installation 250.00    

Total £2463     £1463 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?  No  

12. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 

your local community? 
There is a significant problem with speeding vehicles in the village. This has been evidenced 

through previous Metrocount surveys and has been addressed in part by the local team of 

Speedwatch volunteers. However residents still report their concerns and the SID will help to slow 

traffic speeds further and improve highway safety. Local residents visitors and road users will all 

benefit.  

13. How will you monitor this? 
The Evolis SID monitors traffic speeds and provides data for analysis by the parish council and by 

highway engineers.  

14. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
No personal data will be collected. No individuals are involved in the project.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
Maintenance costs will be accommodated within the parish council revenue budget.  

 

 

 
 

Page 85



4046 
Area Board 

Initiative 

Southern Wiltshire CA - Healthy 

Schools Initiative 
Wiltshire Council £5000 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Area Board Initiative  

2. Amount of funding required? £5000. 

 

3. Project title? 
Southern Wiltshire CA - Healthy Schools Initiative  

4. Project summary: 
To support schools in the community area start continue the Healthy Schools Programme which 

actively promotes learning and healthy lifestyle choices for children offering schools the capacity 

to deliver effective and sustainable interventions for all children  

5. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: Children & Young People, Health and 

wellbeing, Leisure and Culture 

 

6. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £6750   

Total required from Area Board £5000  

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Healthy Schools 

Programme Fee 

@150 per school 

2250    

Support for staff 

release to attend 

2 half day 

training sessions 

up to 300 per 

school 

4500.00    

Total £6750     £0 

7. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
1. All pupils from this community areas 15 schools will potentially benefit. This fund will enable 

each of the schools to draw down funding to pay for the programme and to release staff to attend 

the training sessions. 2. Latest data presented to the Area Board by Public Health highlighted that 

25 of children in year 5 and 5 are obese and that 6 of 17yrs and over have diabetes The most 

efficient and effective way of tackling this issue is through working with the schools directly. 3. 

The Healthy Schools programme actively promotes learning and healthy lifestyle choices for 

Page 86



children and supports the schools capacity to deliver effective and sustainable interventions for all 

children.  

8. How will you monitor this? 
There is a detailed monitoring evaluation and auditing process built into the programme. The area 

board will receive regular update reports.  

9. Safeguarding. Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard those involved in 

your project 
All schools comply with all safeguarding requirements and all staff involved in the deliver of the 

programme comply with these standards also  

16. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you 

continue to fund it? 
The hope is that all schools will take up the offer but it is perhaps realistic to anticipate 

particularly at this time that some wont at least immediately. Also the £300 (per school) staff 

release fund is an upper estimate of the costs involved.  

 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant Amount Required 

Project Spark Working Title 

 
My Salisbury £4975.00 

1. Name: Project Spark Working Title  

2. Project summary:  A youth community project aimed at 13-19-year-olds offering media 

production project workshops run during a 2 or 3-hour weekly group session with each project 

running over a 6 or 7-week half term. There will be 6 different skill workshops being run over the 

academic year during school term time. All workshop projects will assume no knowledge and teach 

the skills and knowledge from the ground up so all members of the group are able to perform a 

number of roles within the production. The workshops aim to increase communication confidence 

work-related soft skills media literacy and the STEM aspects of media production.  

3. Which Area Board are you applying to?  Southern Wiltshire Electoral Division   Laverstock 

Ford and Old Sarum  

4. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?  SP4 6SQ  

5. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: Informal education, Arts/Culture 

Employment or training, Community Project 

 

6. Finance:   We are in our first year of operating 

Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £25076.97    

Total required from Area Board £4975.00   

Page 87



Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Video 

Equipment 
4140.00 Rent Donation yes  7200.00 

LED Lighting 

Equipment 
2000.00 

Staff Time 

Donation 
yes  5760.00 

HD Vision 

Mixer 
1992.00 

Salisbury Area 

Board 
 4991.97 

Tripods 999.97 SalisburyRadio yes  2150.00 

Tungsten 

Lighting 
835.00    

Staff Costs 5760.00    

Fixtures & 

Fittings 
2000.00    

Insurances 150.00    

Training Area 

Rent 
7200.00    

Total £25076.97     £20101.97 

7.  Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?   Yes – Salisbury AB 

 

8.. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 
Project Spark Working Title is a project that aims to deliver a live learning environment delivering 

real-world experience within the media and creative sectors for young people in South Wiltshire. 

Delivered by experienced media professionals with a background in training and development it 

aims to provide a rich fun learning environment that aims to develop technical professional and 

personal traits within the members of the workshop groups. A small group of young people within 

the target demographics have been involved with the development of the project all of whom have 

shown an interest in media production and creative skills previously. The project and workshops are 

designed around their interest and expectations whilst also delivering on key learning aspects in a 

fun and interactive way. These include but not limited to- Communication- Personal confidence - 

Employability skills- Teamwork- Technical Skills and Knowledge- Research Skills- Decision 

Making- Task and time management- IT skills- LiteracyWe hope to attract around 20-25 young 

people to the programme per half term. Engagement will be encouraged through two main channels. 

Firstly through our working partnership with Salisbury Radio the new independent local radio 

station in South Wiltshire. The programme will be advertised on air and through social media 

channels. Secondly through a schools outreach programme aimed at years 6-9 where we will partner 

with local schools to offer one-off workshops showcasing our programme to our target audience or 

those who are about to start secondary school. The programme will be low cost for participants to 

join we will also have a free point of access for low-income families following an application for 

support. The schools and colleges we plan to work with include St Josephs St Edmunds Wyvern 

College and Trafalgar School as well as various year 6 age groups in primary schools around South 

Wiltshire. Primary schools will be targeted toward the end of the academic years ready for year 6 

Page 88



students to join the programme once in year 7.  The project will work in partnership with Salisbury 

Radio - offering opportunities in return where appropriate. We will also work alongside other 

community partners offering media production opportunities for other not for profit and charity 

organisations in Salisbury giving 039live039 brief opportunities to members of the cohort.  Access 

to equipment is all-inclusive with no cost to borrow outside of the programme following sign up 

from parentsguardians of a free loan agreement.We are a proactive team looking to engage with all 

areas of the community and will work hard to engage in the harder to reach areas our school 

outreach programme will be a fundamental part of this. We will also look to work with other 

organisations where a need arises. Subscription costs are being kept to a minimum by a space-

sharing agreement with Salisbury Radio and staff from the station volunteering on the 

project.Application also submitted to Salisbury Area Board - advised to complete form without 

section 1112 correctly filled in due to IT issues. 

9. How will you monitor this? 
We will monitor our project in a number of ways both informal and formal. We will monitor sign 

up and engagement through attendance records and re-sign up.We will continually communicate 

with the participants both verbally and in short form end of project surveys encouraging feedback 

for improvement. We will communicate with parents and guardians of participants through surveys 

and discussion at end of project showcases. 

 

Rural Youth Outreach Project 
Area Board 

Project 
£5000.00 

1. Rural Youth Outreach Project  

2. Project summary: 
The Area Boards in the Warminster Amesbury Pewsey Tidworth Southern Wiltshire and South 

West Wiltshire community areas have identified a need to increase engagement with young people 

in their areas particularly in more rural areas  

3. Which Area Board are you applying to?  Southern Wiltshire  

4. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:  Informal education, Youth work / 

development, Sport/Leisure, Arts/Culture, Employment or training, 1:1/group work, Community 

Project, Volunteering, Health and Targeted Youth Activities in Rural Villages  

5. Finance:  

Total Project cost £30000.00    

Total required from Area Board £5000.00   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Programme 

Manager for 6 

area boards 

30000.00 
South West 

Wilts AB 
 5000.00 

  Warminster AB  5000.00 
  Amesbury AB  5000.00 

Page 89



  Tidworth  5000.00 
  Pewsey  5000.00 

Total £30000     £25000 

 

6. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit your 

local community? 

 
1. Just over 3000 young people live in the Southern Wiltshire Community Area, and 

the area board has a unique way in which it offers them positive activities - 
commissioning a range of activity providers each year, tailored to the views of 
young people and their youth leaders. Currently, our parent volunteer led youth 
groups are engaging with around 500 young people, with others (not quantified) 
attending other activities, i.e. scouts, guides, sport or performing arts clubs etc.  
Also, not quantified, is this community area’s offer to young people with additional 
needs.  In 2021, we have an ambition to run a series of Fun Days, in partnership 
with existing youth clubs and providers. 
 

2. Subject to this project fully complementing and working firmly in partnership with 
existing youth provision in this CA, this project is needed, in order to: 
 

 Enhance support for young people in general, but especially for those with 
additional support needs 

 Inject a new range of initiatives and activities in a more targeted way to meet 
evidenced need 

 Offer much needed additional support to Wiltshire’s existing youth providers 

 Maximise collaborative opportunities across the different community areas, 
so that we learn from each other, we combine energies and resources to run 
bigger one off events, or a series of joint initiatives 

 
3. We are seeking a provider who will work across all of these community areas to 

develop an enhanced offer of positive activities and other services aimed especially 
at those who are potentially at risk. 

 
4. The term of the project is initially for 12 months, but with a view to this being 

extended for a further 12-24 month period 
 

5. It is envisaged that the project deliverer will need an initial period of 3 months of 
consultation and research to ensure that the programme compliments and 
strengthens what already exists, addresses need, has local ownership and will 
make a difference. 

 
6. Following this research phase, the selected provider, working alongside local 

partners, clubs and organisations would be required to design and deliver a 
programme of activities in each community area. An initial research period of 3 
months means that this activities phase will last 9 months. 

 
7. Consideration would need to be given to the fact that in a rural county such as 

Wiltshire, isolation and poor mental health can be hidden amongst certain 

Page 90



vulnerable groups of young people. Evidence of local need, addressing gaps and 
making a tangible difference will be required.  

 
8. At the end of the 12 month period, a full report on the outcomes from the project will 

be required before Area Boards consider additional funding to continue the project 
for a further period of 12 – 24 months.  
 

9. Desired outcomes from the project are: 
 

 Improved level of engagement with young people in the community areas, 
particularly with isolated young people in rural areas 

 

 Increase in range of positive activities available 
 

 Reduced isolation of young people in rural areas 
 

 Identification of young people with issues i.e. mental health, educational 
attainment and physical health issues 

 

 Evidenced improvement in the above areas for those individuals identified 
 

 Evidence that the needs of minority groups have been addressed 
 

 A sustainable model is developed in collaboration with key local partners and 
stakeholders 

 

 

 

Page 91





 

Report to Southern Wiltshire 

Date of Meeting 28/01/2021 

Title of Report Community Youth Grants 

1. Purpose of the report: 
To ask Councillors to consider the following applications seeking funding from the 
Southern Wiltshire Area Board.  

Application Grant Amount 

Applicant: My Salisbury 
Project Title: Project Spark Working Title 
 
View full application 
 
 

£4975.00 

Applicant: Area Board Project 
Project Title: Rural Youth Outreach Project 
 
View full application 
 
 

£5000.00 

Applicant: Area Board Project 
Project Title: Healthy Schools Initiative 
 

£5000.00 

2. Main Considerations 
 
Councillors will need to be satisfied that grants awarded in the 2020/21 year are 
made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of the award being 
made.  
 
Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to them 
by the Cabinet member for Communities, Campuses, Area Boards, Leisure, 
Libraries and Flooding. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere 
to the Area Board Grants Guidance 2020/2021. 
 
Community Youth Grants will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of 
cultural, social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the 
extent and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project.  
 
Community Youth Grants give all local community and voluntary groups, Town and 
Parish Councils an equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes.  
 
 

 

Page 93

http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_youth_grants/grant_detail.php?gid=874
http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_youth_grants/grant_detail.php?gid=887


 

3. The applications  

Applicant: My Salisbury 
Project Title: Project Spark Working Title 

Amount Requested 
from Area Board: 
£4975.00 

This application meets grant criteria 2020/21. 
 
Project Summary:A youth community project aimed at 13-19-year-olds offering 
media production project workshops run during a 2 or 3-hour weekly group session 
with each project running over a 6 or 7-week half term. There will be 6 different skill 
workshops being run over the academic year during school term time. All workshop 
projects will assume no knowledge and teach the skills and knowledge from the 
ground up so all members of the group are able to perform a number of roles within 
the production. The workshops aim to increase communication confidence work-
related soft skills media literacy and the STEM aspects of media production.  
 
 

Applicant: Wiltshire Council 
Project Title: Rural Youth Outreach Project 

Amount Requested 
from Area Board: 
£5000.00 

 
1. The Area Boards in the Warminster, Amesbury, Pewsey, Tidworth, Southern 

Wiltshire and South West Wiltshire community areas have identified a need to 
increase engagement with young people in their areas, particularly in more 
rural areas.  
 

2. Just over 3000 young people live in the Southern Wiltshire Community Area, 
and the area board has a unique way in which it offers them positive activities 
- commissioning a range of activity providers each year, tailored to the views 
of young people and their youth leaders. Currently, our parent volunteer led 
youth groups are engaging around 500 young people, with others (not 
quantified) attending other activities, i.e. scouts, guides, sport or performing 
arts clubs etc.  Also, not quantified, is this community area’s offer to young 
people with additional needs.  In 2021, we have an ambition to run a series of 
Fun Days, in partnership with existing youth clubs and providers. 
 

3. Subject to this project fully complementing and working firmly in partnership 
with existing youth provision in this CA, this project is needed, in order to: 
 

 Enhance support for young people in general, but especially for those 
with additional support needs 

 Inject a new range of initiatives and activities in a more targeted way to 
meet evidenced need 

 Offer much needed additional support to Wiltshire’s existing youth 
providers 

Page 94



 Maximise collaborative opportunities across the different community 
areas, so that we learn from each other, we combine energies and 
resources to run bigger one off events, or a series of joint initiatives 

 
4. We are seeking a provider who will work across all of these community areas 

to develop an enhanced offer of positive activities and other services aimed 
especially at those who are potentially at risk. 

 
5. The term of the project is initially for 12 months, but with a view to this being 

extended for a further 12-24 month period 
 

6. It is envisaged that the project deliverer will need an initial period of 3 months 
of consultation and research to ensure that the programme compliments and 
strengthens what already exists, addresses need, has local ownership and 
will make a difference. 

 
7. Following this research phase, the selected provider, working alongside local 

partners, clubs and organisations would be required to design and deliver a 
programme of activities in each community area. An initial research period of 
3 months means that this activities phase will last 9 months. 

 
8. Consideration would need to be given to the fact that in a rural county such 

as Wiltshire, isolation and poor mental health can be hidden amongst certain 
vulnerable groups of young people. Evidence of local need, addressing gaps 
and making a tangible difference will be required.  

 
9. At the end of the 12 month period, a full report on the outcomes from the 

project will be required before Area Boards consider additional funding to 
continue the project for a further period of 12 – 24 months.  
 

10. Desired outcomes from the project are: 
 

 Improved level of engagement with young people in the community areas, 
particularly with isolated young people in rural areas 

 

 Increase in range of positive activities available 
 

 Reduced isolation of young people in rural areas 
 

 Identification of young people with issues i.e. mental health, educational 
attainment and physical health issues 

 

 Evidenced improvement in the above areas for those individuals identified 
 

 Evidence that the needs of minority groups have been addressed 
 

 A sustainable model is developed in collaboration with key local partners 
and stakeholders 

 

Page 95



 

 Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

 Area Board Project 
Southern Wiltshire CA - Healthy 
Schools Initiative 

£5000.00 

Project Description: 
 
1. To support schools in the community area start or continue the Healthy Schools 
Programme which actively promotes learning and healthy lifestyle choices for 
children, offering schools the capacity to deliver effective and sustainable 
interventions for all children. 
  
2. All pupils from this community areas 15 schools will potentially benefit.  This fund 
will enable each of the schools to draw down funding to pay for the  programme and 
to release staff to attend the training sessions.   
 
3. Latest data presented to the Area Board by Public Health highlighted that 25% of 
children in year 5 and 6 are obese and that 6% of 17yrs and over have diabetes. 
The most efficient and effective way of tackling this issue is through working with the 
schools directly.  
 
4. Only 2 schools from this community area’s 15 schools are accredited with Healthy 
Schools status, and a further 2 have signed up to start. 
 
5. The Healthy Schools programme actively promotes learning and healthy lifestyle 
choices for children and supports a school’s capacity to deliver effective and 
sustainable interventions for all children. 
 
6. A secondary benefit from the area board investing in this project, is to help us 
form stronger and more mutually beneficial working relations with schools in this 
community area. 
  

 

 

Karen Linaker 

Community Engagement Manager 

01722 434697 

Page 96


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	 Presentation Slides

	6 To note the written reports and updates in the agenda pack or distributed on the night
	01_WC_Info_Local.Plan.Review.and G&T_Consultations_V2
	Landford - Rural Needs Survey
	Healthwatch January
	CCG January

	7 Matters of Community Wide Interest
	11 Community Area Transport Group (CATG) Update
	Southern Wilts CATG Post Meeting Spend - Dec 2020.pdf
	2020-21

	CATG Recommendation Summary

	12 Community Area Grants
	Grants List
	Youth Funding Report V2




